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Management Discussion and Analysis

IR R wm MDA

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year under review, Han Tang International Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
recorded revenue of approximately HK$28.8 million. The results
of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Since the loss in control over the tyre manufacturing operations, the
management of the Company carried out reviews and evaluations
on its operation and marketing strategies, whilst leveraging on the
network and experience of its management team in exploring new
businesses or investment opportunities, including diversifying its
business into the semiconductors/electronic products/components
trading business and petroleum products trading business, in order to
enhance its future business development and financial position.

Nevertheless, following the slippage in global oil and gas prices, and
taking into consideration the uncertainties in the relevant industry
environment, the management decided to take a prudent approach
and realigned its trading strategy, with more focus on the trading of
semiconductors/electronic products/components segment.

The management has continued its efforts in developing the
construction and development of the semiconductor manufacturing
factory (owned by IC Spectrum (Kunshan) Co., Limited (“ICSC")).

At present, the Group is principally involved in (i) the manufacturing
of semiconductors; and (ii) the trading of semiconductors/electronic
products/components.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Operating results

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
was approximately HK$28.8 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 43.0% as compared with approximately HK$50.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2014. As stated above,
the Group planned to put more emphasis on the trading of
semiconductors/electronic products components segment which
commenced in late 2014. The decrease in revenue was mainly
attributable to the realignment in the trading operations, from
trading of petroleum products to semiconductors/electronic products/
components.

Gross profit amounted to approximately HK$2.9 million, representing
an increase of approximately 16% in current year as compared with
the corresponding year of approximately HK$2.5 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The administrative expenses for continuing operations decreased
from approximately HK$28.0 million in the corresponding year to
approximately HK$26.3 million in the current year, primarily due to
the decrease in professional fees in relation to the regularization
exercise.

Impairment loss on ICSC’s property was approximately HK$130.9
million which is in alignment with the valued amounts which is valued
by an independent professional valuer.

The finance costs amounted to approximately HK$7.7 million
in the current year as compared with the corresponding year of
approximately HK$7.3 million.

As a result, the Group recorded a loss from the continuing
operations attributable to the owners of the Company amounting
to approximately HK$124.9 million, representing an increase in
loss of approximately 283.1% as compared with a loss from the
same of approximately HK$32.6 million in the corresponding year.
Basic loss from continuing operations attributable to the owners of
the Company per share amounted to HK79.0 cents as compared
with basic loss from the same of HK20.8 cents per share in the
corresponding year.

FINANCIAL POSITION

The total assets of the Group decreased from approximately
HK$500.9 million (as at 31 December 2014) to approximately
HK$345.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$155.4 million.

As at 31 December 2015, the total carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment of the Group decreased from approximately
HK$420.1 million (as at 31 December 2014) to approximately
HK$270.1 million. The decrease is mainly due to the provision
for impairment on the property owned by ICSC, an indirect
72.79%-owned subsidiary of the Company, having considered the
valuation report for the year ended 31 December 2015 prepared by
an independent professional valuer.

The net asset value of the Group attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$165.0 million as at 31
December 2015 as compared with approximately HK$301.9 million as
at 31 December 2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREN R R

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately HK$1.3 million (2014: approximately
HK$8.4 million) mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars. As at
31 December 2015, total borrowings of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$95.6 million (2014: approximately HK$79.9
million) denominated in Hong Kong dollars. As at 31 December 2015,
the Group had net current assets of approximately HK$24.9 million as
compared with net current assets of approximately HK$50.9 million
as at 31 December 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company issued
7-year unsecured bonds in the principal amount of HK$10 million
and 2-year unsecured bonds in the principal amount of HK$5.5
million, both bearing interest rate of 9% per annum (payable semi-
annually), to two separate independent third parties. The issue of
unsecured bonds were to obtain funding, which could be used to
finance any potential investment opportunity of the Group that
may arise from time to time and for the general working capital of
the Company. The net proceeds from the issuance, amounted to
HK$15.5 million, have been used as general working capital, mainly
general and administrative costs, of the Group. The Company also
issued 3% 3-year convertible bonds with outstanding amount of
HK$15,000,000 on 8 April 2013. Such convertible bonds shall mature
on 8 April 2016.

The gearing ratio of the Group, defined as the total borrowings to the
shareholders’ equity, amounted to 0.404 as at 31 December 2015 as
compared with 0.193 as at 31 December 2014.

PROSPECTS

The management is committed to continue identifying investment
opportunities that can enhance the Group’s business development
and strengthen its earning base. The management remains
committed in reviewing its business and operations, including
reinforcing its internal control and operational system to ensure
that the Group can accommodate the external challenge under the
fluctuating economy outlook, as well as enhancing its corporate
governance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Manufacturing of semiconductors

The management has continued its efforts in the construction
and development of the semiconductor manufacturing factory in
Kunshan, the PRC, with an aim to expand its business to design,
research and development, processing, manufacturing and sale
of semiconductors, integrated circuits and new type of electronic
components and the provision of related consultancy services.

Trading of semiconductors/electronic products/
components

To further complement the trading of semiconductors/electronic
products/components segment, the Company, leveraging on the
experience and business network of its management, is expanding
into the trading and research and development of semiconductors/
electronic products. It is expected that such expansion/development
will contribute positively to both the Group’s performance as well
as broaden the customer base and industry networks for future
development of the Group’s semiconductors business.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group did not have any significant investments held, material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint venture
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 29 employees
(including directors of the Company (the “Directors”)). The
remuneration was linked to the financial results of the Group as well
as the performance of individual staff. The remuneration policies of
the Group’s employees are subject to review regularly. On irregular
but necessary basis, adequate on-job trainings had been provided to
staff in need. The Group has implemented a social insurance scheme
for its PRC staff and mandatory provident fund for its Hong Kong
staff in compliance with requirements of the relevant employment
regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong respectively. The Group
adopted a new share option scheme on 8 September 2014 (the
operation of which has yet commenced) as a part of remuneration
of its Directors and employees. There was no share option granted
during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREN R R

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There was no contingent liability as at 31 December 2015.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding, which were contracted but not
provided for, in the financial statements were approximately HK$55.3
million in respect of the manufacturing of semiconductors segment as
at 31 December 2015 (2014: approximately HK$58.0 million).

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

There were no material charges on the Group’s assets as at 31
December 2015.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s monetary
assets and transactions are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, US dollars and Renminbi. The Group did not use any financial
instruments for hedging purposes.
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CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the special general meeting
of the Company held on 2 January 2015, the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) have approved to change the name
of the Company from “Pearl River Tyre (Holdings) Limited” to “Han
Tang International Holdings Limited” and to adopt "% /& BE 5 5%
BBRZAF]" as its secondary name in Chinese to replace the former
Chinese name "% )L & fa (=A%) B R 22 7", which was used for
identification purposes only. With the approval of the Registrar of
Companies in Bermuda, the change of the company name became
effective on 12 January 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal business of the Company is investment holding.

The Group's principal activities are (i) the manufacturing of
semiconductors; and (ii) the trading of semiconductors/electronic
products/components.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities, including an
indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business, can
be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis as set out on
pages 4 to 8 of this annual report. These discussions form part of this
directors’ report.

The analysis of the principal activities of the Group during the
financial year are set out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group realised the importance of sufficient financial funding. The
Group will keep on to monitor and measure the liquidity and funding
risk in an on-going basis, and ensure a sufficient cash flow for the
business operations.

Other risks and uncertainties are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

Employees

Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group and the
Group regards the personal development of its employees as highly
important. The Group wants to continue to be an attractive employer
for committed employees.

Directors’ Report
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Directors’ Report
EEERES

The Group strives to motivate its employees with a clear career
path and opportunities for advancement and improvement of their
skills. The Group provides on-the-job training and development
opportunities to its staff members and considers all valuable feedback
from its employees for enhancing workplace productivity and
harmony.

In addition, the Group offers competitive remuneration packages to
its employees.

Customers and Suppliers

The customers and suppliers of the Group are independent third
parties to the Group. The Group is committed to maintain good
relationships with its customers and suppliers.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural resources.
We strive to minimise our environmental impact by saving electricity
and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC and Hong Kong while the shares of Company
(the “Shares”) are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange”). Hence, our establishment and
operations shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, Hong Kong and the respective place of incorporation of the
Company and its subsidiaries. In addition, the Company is required to
comply with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

During the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this
report, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material breach
of or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the
Group that has a significant impact on the business and operations of
the Group.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
the financial positions of the Group as at 31 December 2015 are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 46 to 115 of
this annual report.
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RESERVES

Details of movement in reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in Note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount of the Company’s
reserves available for distribution to its owners, calculated
under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), was
HK$163,396,000 (2014: HK$316,283,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2015,

(@) All revenue and purchases (not including items which are of a
capital nature) of the Group were attributable to the Group's
one customer and two suppliers respectively;

(b) the Group’s largest customer accounted for 100% of revenue
of the Group whilst the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
57% of purchases of the Group.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders
who, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of
the Company’s share capital had an interest in any of the largest
customer and the two largest suppliers of the Group as mentioned
above.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend had been paid during the year ended 31 December 2015
and the Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 116 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in Note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ Report
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Directors’ Report
EEERES

BONDS

Details of the bonds issued during the year ended 31 December 2015
can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis as set out
on pages 4 to 8 of this annual report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 8 September
2014, an ordinary resolution was passed by the Shareholders for the
adoption of a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme"”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is enable the Group to
grant options to the eligible participants, including any director
and employee of the Group and suppliers, consultants, advisors,
customers, any member of or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any invested entity, as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group.

The principal term of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:-

(i)  the total number of Shares in respect of which options may
be granted to each grantee in any 12-month’s period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the
time being.

(i) an option may be accepted by an eligible participant not later
than 21 days from the date of grant of the option. Upon
acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant of the option.

(iii) unless otherwise determined by the Directors, a grantee is not
required to hold an option for any minimum period nor achieve
any performance targets before the exercise of an option
granted to him.

(iv) the option may be exercised at any time within a period as
specified by the Directors, which should not be more than ten
years from the date on which an option is granted.

(v)  the subscription price shall be a price determined by the board
of Directors (the “Board”) and shall not be less than the highest
of: (a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more
board lots of the Shares on the date of grant; (b) the average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a
Share on the date of grant.
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(vi) the Share Option Scheme remains valid for a period of 10 years
commencing on 8 September 2014.

Operation of the Share Option Scheme will commence after all
conditions precedent have been fulfilled. As at the date of this
annual report, the conditions precedent have not yet been completely
fulfilled and therefore the Share Option Scheme has not yet become
unconditional and operative.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws
of the Company (“Bye-Laws”) or the laws in Bermuda which could
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the financial year ended 31 December 2015 are set out
in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

MATERIAL INTERESTS IN ENTITIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 17
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report
EEERES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The following are the Directors as at the date of this annual report
and during the financial year ended 31 December 2015:

Executive Directors
Yang Liu (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Lo Ka Wai

Non-Executive Director
Xu Lei

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Lai Ho Man, Dickson

Wang Xiao Chuan

Wong Lit Chor, Alexis

Liu Hongjun

Pursuant to Bye-Law 84(1) of the Bye-Laws, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years.
Accordingly, Mr. Lo Ka Wai, an executive Director, Mr. Wang Xiao
Chuan and Mr. Liu Hongjun, independent non-executive Directors,
shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (the “2016 AGM") and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the 2016 AGM.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
2016 AGM has a service contract with the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing entity within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to
the Group’s business, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
is or was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with
a Director is or was materially interested, either directly or indirectly,
subsisted at 31 December 2015 or at any time during the financial
year ended 31 December 2015.

DISCLOSURE OF CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF

DIRECTOR

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of th Listing Rules, changes in Director’s
information since the date of the 2015 interim report of the Company
are set out below:

Experience including other directorships held in listed
companies

Mr. Xu Lei resigned as a non-executive director of Heng Xin China
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8046), the shares of which are listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange with effect from
18 December 2015.
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Directors’ Report
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the financial year ended 31 December
2015.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.
The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the
Directors as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when the Directors’ Report
prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with section
391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong
Kong).

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBT SECURITIES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
chief executives of the Company (including their spouses or children
under 18 years of age) to have any right to subscribe for securities of
the Company or any or its associated corporations as defined in the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") or to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
are set out below:

Interests and short positions in Shares

Directors’ Report
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Yang Liu Beneficial owner Long position 33,000,000 20.87%
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Lo Ka Wai Beneficial owner Long position 4,000,000 2.53%
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the B EXHEEEIN  R_ZT—HAE+ - H

Directors, chief executives of the Company or any of their associates
had any interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Directors’ Report
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER

PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015, as far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than the Directors and the chief executives
of the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares
and underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the

SFO were as follows:

Interests or short positions in Shares

Name of
Shareholder

EEpLA

Capacity

L

Long position/
short position

HE/ KR
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Approximate

percentage of

Number of shareholding
Shares held in the Company
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Wang Chen Yuan
TR

Ou Yitao

BZLE

First Call Investments
Limited (Note)

First Call Investments
Limited(#73%)

Zhu Baoguo (Note)

NRE (K1)

Beneficial owner

ExfAA

Beneficial owner

ExBEAA

E\

Beneficial owner

it
E\

s A A

Interest of Controlled
Corporation

SR A B i

Long position

30

Long position

iR
Long position

iR

Long position

iR

Note: These Shares are held by First Call Investments Limited which is owned as to
100% by Zhu Baoguo. By virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, Zhu
Baoguo is deemed to be interested in these 8,000,000 Shares held by First
Call Investments Limited.

10,279,488 6.50%
8,100,000 5.12%
8,000,000 5.06%
8,000,000 5.06%
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Directors
are not aware of any other persons (other than the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company) who have interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 336 of SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2015.

SUSPENSION OF TRADING IN SHARES AND
SECOND DELISTING STAGE

At the request of the Company, trading in the Shares on the Stock
Exchange has been suspended with effect from 9:00 a.m. on 1 April
2014. On 11 November 2015, the Company has been informed by
the Stock Exchange that (i) it has placed the Company under the
second delisting stage pursuant to Practice Note 17 to the Listing
Rules, and the second delisting stage will expire on 10 May 2016; and
(ii) the Company is required to submit a viable resumption proposal
to address the resumption conditions at least 10 business days before
the expiry date of the second delisting stage (i.e. 10 May 2016).
Details of the resumption conditions imposed by the Stock Exchange
were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 11 September
2014. Further announcement(s) will be made by the Company in
compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules to inform the
Shareholders in relation to the development of the Company as and
when appropriate.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the employees of the Group are based on their
qualifications, experience, responsibilities, performance, competence
and skills displayed, market comparables and economic performance
of the Group.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in Note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements. The Directors’ emoluments
are decided by the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”), having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance, comparable market
statistics and their time, effort and expertise to be exercised on the
Group's affairs.
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Directors’ Report
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Directors are not
aware of any business or interest of the Directors and their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) that compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflicts of interest which any
such person has or may have with the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out on pages 24 to 42 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

Following the resignation of Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
("Crowe Horwath"”) as auditor of the Company on 29 September
2014, ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (“ZHONGHUI ANDA") was
appointed as the auditor of the Company at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 27 October 2014 to fill the vacancy
following the resignation of Crowe Horwath.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in auditor of
the Company during the past three years.

A resolution will be proposed at the 2016 AGM to re-appoint
ZHONGHUI ANDA as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Yang Liu
Executive Director, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 10 March 2016
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yang Liu (“Mr. Yang”), aged 42, was appointed as an executive
Director on 18 November 2013 and was subsequently appointed
as the chief executive officer of the Company and the chairman of
the Board on 2 January 2014 and 1 September 2014 respectively.
He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company and a
member of the share option committee of the Company (the “Share
Option Committee”). Mr. Yang graduated from Shaanxi University
of Technology (formerly known as Shaanxi Institute of Technology)
with a bachelor degree in engineering, specializing in auto-control.
Mr. Yang has more than 10 years’ experience in corporate and
capital management in semi-conductor industry, and international
trading of electronic products and bulk commodity. Mr. Yang is
currently the general manager, the executive director and the legal
representative of a company in the People’s Republic of China with
its principal activities in semi-conductor, and international trading
of electronic products and bulk commodity. Mr. Yang is also a non-
executive director of National United Resources Holdings Limited
(stock code: 254), whose shares are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lo Ka Wai (“Mr. Lo"), aged 47, was appointed as an
executive Director on 18 November 2013. He is a member of each
of the nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”), the Remuneration Committee and the Share Option
Committee. Mr. Lo is also a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company. He graduated from the University of Wollongong,
Australia with a bachelor degree in commerce. Mr. Lo is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and CPA
Australia. Mr. Lo has more than 20 years of experience in financial
management and corporate finance. Mr. Lo had been chief financial
officer and/or company secretary for various listed companies in
Hong Kong and currently is a chief financial officer of a company
whose shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange (“GEM"), an executive director of National United
Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 254) and independent non-
executive directors of Yusei Holdings Limited (stock code: 96) and
Sheng Yuan Holdings Limited (stock code: 851), the shares of these
three companies are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors

SR B

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Xu Lei (“Mr. Xu”), aged 44, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 20 November 2013. Mr. Xu has had over 16 years of
senior executive and operational experiences in the fields of mass
media, technological development and cultural promotion in China
since completion of a graduate study at Tongji University in China.
Mr. Xu had been a senior manager of The China International
Cultural Exchange Centre from 1997 to 2001 and has been the
president and editor-in-chief of Travel & Leisure Magazine from 2002
to the present. Since 2003, Mr. Xu has gained substantial corporate
governance and operational control experiences in the field of
broadcasting and media communications in China including as the
vice president of an audio and video publishing house, an executive
director of a communication technology development company
and a cultural investment firm respectively. Through his association
with these enterprises, Mr. Xu has built a broad based social and
people resource network in the relevant industries. Mr. Xu was a
non-executive director of Heng Xin China Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8046), whose shares are listed on GEM, for the period from
November 2009 to December 2015.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson (“Mr. Lai"), aged 42, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 November 2013. He is the
chairman of each of the audit committee of the Company (the ”Audit
Committee”), the Nomination Committee and the Share Option
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee. He has
over 19 years of experience in financial management and auditing.
Mr. Lai is also an independent non-executive director of National
United Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 254), whose shares
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. During the period
from December 2003 to March 2011, Mr. Lai worked for several listed
and private companies including AsiaAlum Group, Brigantine Services
Limited (the subgroup of Maersk Group), CITIC Pacific Ltd and Kerry
Beverage Services Ltd. During the period from September 1996 to
October 2003, Mr. Lai worked as an assistant manager in KPMG,
where he was mainly responsible for the external auditing, initial
public offering and due diligence projects of financial institution
sector. He served as the chief financial officer and company secretary
of Hosa International Limited (stock code: 2200), a company whose
shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, from
February 2011 to August 2015 and was primarily responsible for the
overall financial affairs. He served as the chief financial officer and
company secretary of Bi Feng Tang (Group) Holdings Corporation
since August 2015. Mr. Lai graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a degree of Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy in
November 1996. Mr. Lai also received a master’s degree in business
administration from the University of Birmingham in 2008. He is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
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Mr. Wang Xiao Chuan (“Mr. Wang”), aged 43, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 20 November 2013. He is
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. He graduated from
Beijing University of Technology with a master degree in management
majoring in finance and mathematics in 2000 and Chengdu University
of Technology (formerly known as Chengdu Institute of Technology)
with a bachelor degree in Geology in 1993. Mr. Wang has more
than 10 years’ experience in investment, corporate finance and
securities dealing experience gained by working as a senior executive
in a number of financial services companies in the People’s Republic
of China. Mr. Wang is currently the director of Beijing Shuoren
Technology Co., Ltd. and a number of companies.

Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis (“Mr. Wong”), aged 57, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 20 November 2013. He
is a member of the Audit Committee. He graduated from University
of Toronto, Canada in 1981 with Bachelor of Arts degree majoring
in economics and commerce and has obtained a master of business
administration degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
1987. Mr. Wong has over 30 years of banking, investment, corporate
finance and securities dealing experience gained by working as a
senior executive in a number of listed local and PRC financial services
companies. Mr. Wong is currently an independent non-executive
director of each of Inspur International Limited (stock code: 596) and
China Fortune Holdings Limited (stock code: 110), the shares of these
two companies are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Liu Hongjun (“Mr. Liu”), aged 45, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 28 September 2012. He
is @ member of each of the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee. Mr. Liu is a graduate of Electric Engineering Institute of
Hohai University in Nanjing City with a Bachelor degree in Industrial
Electrical Automation. Mr. Liu has over 20 years of experience in the
semi-conductor industry specialised in chips manufacturing. Mr. Liu is
currently a senior manager of Tokyo Electron (Kunshan) Limited.

Biographical Details of Directors
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COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Board and the management are committed to maintaining and
ensuring high standards of corporate governance as good corporate
governance can safeguard the interests of all Shareholders and
enhance corporate value. The Board continuously reviews and
improves the corporate governance practices and standards of
the Group from time to time to ensure that business activities and
decision making possesses are regulated in a proper manner.

The Company had complied with the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
December 2015, except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1
of the CG Code as described below.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The role of the chairman
of the Board (the “Chairman”) and chief executive officer of the
Company (the "CEQ") were not separate and Mr. Yang Liu (“Mr.
Yang”) currently performs these two roles. After evaluation of the
current situation of the Company and taking into account of the
experience and past performance of Mr. Yang, the Board is of the
opinion that it is appropriate and in the best interests of the Company
at the present stage for Mr. Yang to hold both positions as the
Chairman and the CEO as it helps to maintain the continuity of the
policies and the stability of the operations of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, in the opinion of the Directors, the Company
was in compliance with all the code provisions set out in the CG Code
during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the conduct regarding the securities
transactions by Directors. Having made specific enquiries to all
Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors had complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
year under review.

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, and is responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well
as reviewing the operation and financial performance of the Group.
The Board reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering
overall strategy of the Group, major acquisitions and disposals,
annual budgets, annual and interim results, recommendations on
Directors’ appointment or re-appointment, approval of major capital
transactions and other significant operational and financial matters.
The management was delegated the authority and responsibility
by the Board for the daily management of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this
report.

Board Composition
The Board currently consists of seven Directors including two
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and four independent
non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Yang Liu (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lo Ka Wai

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Xu Lei

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson

Mr. Wang Xiao Chuan

Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis

Mr. Liu Hongjun
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The current Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced
Board composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists
across the Board and has complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules that the Board to have at least one-third of its members
comprising independent non-executive Directors. The composition
of the Board reflects the balanced skills and experience for effective
leadership.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Group. The executive Directors have sufficient experience to hold
the positions so as to carry out their duties effectively and efficiently.
The non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors,
who combine to offer diverse industry expertise, serve the important
function of providing relevant advise so as to assist the management
on formulation of business strategy and ensuring that the Board
maintains high standards of financial and other mandatory reporting
requirements as well as providing adequate checks and balances for
safeguarding the interests of Shareholders and the Company as a
whole. The biographical information of the Directors are set out on
pages 21 to 23 under the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors”.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted on 16 October 2013 a board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company recognises that increasing
diversity at the Board level will support the attainment of the
Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable development. The
Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Board
delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity Policy to the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will review and
adopt the above measurements when it reviewed the composition of
the Board. After assessing the suitability of the Directors’ skills and
experience to the Company’s business, the Nomination Committee
considered that the existing Board were suitably qualified with
professional backgrounds and/or equipped with extensive expertise
for the purposes of providing direction to and oversight of the
Group’s strategic and business in achieving its objectives.
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Directors’ Training

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains informed and relevant. The
Audit Committee is delegated the responsibility by the Board of
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development and provided a record of training they received for the
financial year ended 31 December 2015 to the Company.

The individual training record of each Director received for the year
ended 31 December 2015 is summarised below:
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(i) Attending or participating in seminars/workshops; or
(ii) working in technical committee relevant to

Name of Directors

the Group’s business/directors duties; or

(iii) reading materials in relation to regulatory update
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(i) Attending or participating in seminars/workshops; or
(ii) working in technical committee relevant to

Name of Directors

the Group’s business/directors duties; or
(iii) reading materials in relation to regulatory update
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Independent Non-executive Directors
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Lai Ho Man, Dickson
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Wang Xiao Chuan
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Wong Lit Chor, Alexis

&=

Liu Hongjun

24

Non-Executive Directors

The non-executive Director and the four independent non-executive
Directors are persons of high caliber, with academic and professional
qualifications in the fields of semi-conductor, auditing, economic,
commerce, finance and accounting. With their experience gained
from various sectors, they provide strong support towards the
effective discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board.
Each current independent non-executive Director gives an annual
confirmation of his independence to the Company, and the Company
considers each of them is independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

The non-executive Director and the four independent non-executive
Directors appointed for an initial term of one year which shall be
automatically renewable for successive term of one year upon the
expiry of the said term and are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Bye-Laws.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Up to the date of this report, the roles of Chairman and CEO were
not separate and Mr. Yang Liu currently performs these two roles.
After evaluation of the current situation of the Company and taking
into account of the experience and past performance of Mr. Yang,
the Board is of the opinion that it is appropriate and in the best
interests of the Company at the present stage for Mr. Yang to hold
both positions as the Chairman and the CEO as it helps to maintain
the continuity of the policies and the stability of the operations
of the Company. The Board believes that the balance of power
and authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired
and is adequately ensured by the current Board which comprises
experienced and high calibre individuals with sufficient number
thereof being independent non-executive Directors.

Board Meetings

The Company planned in advance four scheduled Board meetings a
year at approximately quarterly interval and additional meetings will
be held as and when required. During the regular meetings of the
Board, the Board reviewed the operation and financial performance
and reviewed and approved the annual and interim results.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board held four
meetings. All Directors are given an opportunity to include any
matters in the agenda for regular Board meetings, and are given
sufficient time to review documents and information relating to
matters to be discussed in Board meetings in advance.
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Number of
Name of Directors attendance
EEHE H IR
Non-executive Director
FHITES
Xu Lei 3/4
"E
Independent Non-executive Directors
BIUKHTES
Lai Ho Man, Dickson 4/4
HRE
Wang Xiao Chuan 4/4
Tl
Wong Lit Chor, Alexis 4/4
=29
Liu Hongjun 4/4
2=

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled to have
access to Board papers and related materials and has unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, and has
the liberty to seek external professional advice if so required.
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General Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2015, three general meetings
of the Company were held, being the adjourned annual general
meeting (the “Adjourned AGM”) and the special general meeting
(the “SGM") both held on 2 January 2015 and the annual general
meeting (the “2015 AGM") held on 5 May 2015.

Name of Directors
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The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, uses annual general meetings or other
general meetings to communicate with them and encourage their
participation. Mr. Yang Liu, the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Lai Ho
Man, Dickson, chairman of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and the Share Option Committee, and Mr. Wang Xiao
Chuan, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee attended the
2015 AGM, the Adjourned AGM and the SGM to answer questions
and collect views of Shareholders.
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Board Committees

The Board has established the following committees with defined
terms of reference, which are on no less exacting terms than those set
out in the CG Code:

° Audit Committee
. Remuneration Committee
° Nomination Committee

Each committee has authority to engage outside consultants or
experts as it considers necessary to discharge the committee’s
responsibilities. Minutes of all committees meetings are circulated
to relevant committees’ members and open for inspection by all
Directors. To further reinforce independence and effectiveness, each
of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, and Remuneration
Committee have been structured to include all or a majority of
independent non-executive Directors. Details of the committees are
set out below.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee in 1997 with written
terms of reference which was revised on 24 August 2012 and 31
December 2015. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is
currently made available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors as follows:

Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis
Mr. Liu Hongjun

g Wil E RS
SFRIPTELE -

s ®WIZZEZ

e ¥MZEZE"

s RHZEET
ELEECEHERANBTZESREREY
EMERT - BEZEINTEMKESRK -
BZEBggamed B xIEBEEZEe
REBHEHEREESERN - BE—F A
BUYEREWE  BEREET REZEY
MHEMEZESHERELER  UBRE2E%
RBABUENITES - SZEGLHBH
RTEX e

ERZEE
KRABIR—NNEFRILBEZEZES - W H
TEAMESE(WN=_Z——F N \A=-+HEH
M_E-—RE+-A=+—HEL) EXZE

BevRESEBNEHNBRARARE
At o

EVZECRANA-RBUFRTESA
B BN

REXRE(LE)

wARE

B ERE

32 Han Tang International Holdings Limited ZEEIERZRER AR



Terms of reference of the Audit Committee adopted by the Board are
aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The Audit Committee was established to review the Group’s financial
controls, internal controls and risk management systems and make
relevant recommendations to the Board. The Audit Committee has
been chaired by an independent non-executive Director and all of the
Audit Committee members are independent non-executive Directors.
The chairman of the Audit Committee possesses appropriate
professional qualifications, accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee also discusses with management the risk
management and internal control systems to ensure effective systems
are in place.

The Audit Committee also responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
the external auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of resignation
or dismissal of such auditor; reviewing the external auditor’s
independence, the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices; reviewing the interim and annual reports and financial
statements of the Group; monitoring the corporate governance of
the Group including compliance with statutory and Listing Rules
requirements and overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems including
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff in
charge of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting function and their training arrangement and budget, and
internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss
any area of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews
the Company’s annual report and interim report before submission to
the Board and to focus particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i)  significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

( compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements in
relation to financial reporting.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee held
two meetings:

Name of Directors
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Lai Ho Man, Dickson 2/2
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Wong Lit Chor, Alexis 2/2
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Liu Hongjun 2/2
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During the year under review, the Audit Committee had performed
the following work:

- reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31 December
2014 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 June
2015;

- discussed with the management of the Company over the
completeness, fairness and adequacy of reporting and
accounting standards and policies of the Group in the
preparation of the interim financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2015 and annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014,

- reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report contained in the
annual report and relevant corporate governance matters;

- reviewed and discussed with the external auditor over the
financial reporting of the Company;

- reviewed the internal control procedures of the Group;

- reviewed the review report conducted by an independent
professional firm in respect of the internal control over
certain corporate governance, financial procedures, systems
and internal control of the Company and a subsidiary of the
Company; and

- recommended to the Board for the re-appointment of the
auditor of the Company and the terms of its engagement.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in 2005
with written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee is currently made available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members as
follows:

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wang Xiao Chuan (Chairman)
Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson

Executive Director
Mr. Lo Ka Wai

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee adopted by the
Board are aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by an independent non-
executive Director. The Remuneration Committee is responsible to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of the Directors and senior management of the Company so as to
ensure that the Company attracts and retains the Directors and senior
management of the Company needed to run the Group successfully
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy, and also, review the appropriateness
and relevance of the remuneration policy.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting for
reviewing the existing policy and structure of the remuneration for
the Directors and senior management of the Company.
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Apart from the meeting held for the above, the Remuneration
Committee by passing of written resolution considered the renewal
of the letter of appointment of an independent non-executive
Director and made recommendations to the Board for approval.

The emoluments payable to Directors and senior management of the
Company will depend on their respective contractual terms under
the employment agreements, if any, and is fixed by the Board with
reference to the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee,
the performance of the Group and the prevailing market conditions.
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
of the Company are set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The remuneration of the senior management (comprising Directors)
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015, by band is set
out below:
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference which was revised on 16 October 2013. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee is currently made available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members as
follows:

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Hongjun

Executive Director
Mr. Lo Ka Wai

Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee adopted by the
Board are aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code.
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The Nomination Committee is currently chaired by the independent
non-executive Director. The function of the Nomination Committee
are to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives required)
of the Board and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to
identify suitably qualified individuals to become Directors; to assess
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors; to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors; and
to review the Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives for
implementing such Board Diversity Policy as may be adopted by the
Board from time to time and to review the progress on achieving the
objectives, and make disclosure of its review results in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting for reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board, considering the independence of
independent non-executive Directors and made recommendations to
the Board on the re-election of retiring Directors at the 2015 AGM.
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Share Option Committee

The Company established the Share Option Committee with written
terms of reference which was adopted in 2004 and amended on 29
March 2012.

The functions of the Share Option Committee are to implement and
administer the share option scheme(s) of the Company including to
deal with the issue and allotment of new Shares arising from the
exercise of options by grantees; to determine the number of Shares
to be offered to eligible participants; to recommend the subscription
price of the share options to the Board; and to recommend to the
Board where it deems necessary, any amendment, modification,
addition, or deletion of the share option scheme(s) of the Company.

The Share Option Committee currently comprises three members as
follows:

Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson (Chairman)

Executive Directors
Mr. Yang Liu
Mr. Lo Ka Wai

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Share Option
Committee did not hold any meeting.

External Audit

The Company’s existing external auditor, ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA
Limited, performs independent statutory audit on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015. The Audit Committee also has unrestricted access to external
auditor as necessary. The Company’s external auditor also reports
to the Audit Committee any significant weaknesses in the Group’s
internal control system which might come to its notice during the
course of audit.

Prior to the commencement of the audit of the Company, the Audit
Committee should be received written confirmation from the external
auditor on its independence and objectivity as required by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Members of the Audit Committee have been satisfied with the
findings of their review of the audit fees, process and effectiveness,
independence and objectivity of ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited,
and the Audit Committee has recommended to the Board the re-
appointment of ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited as the Company’s
external auditor.

Auditor’s Remuneration

Total remunerations of HK$580,000 and HK$287,000 were paid/
payable to ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited for their audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015 and non-audit services for the year ended 31
December 2015 respectively. The non-audit services mainly consists
of interim review and agreed-upon-procedures services.

Company Secretary

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial
services provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1"), to
provide compliance and full range of company secretarial services
to the Group in order to assist the Group to cope with the changing
regulatory environment and to suit different commercial needs.

Ms. Chan Pui Shan, Bessie (“Ms. Chan”), the representative of Uni-
1, was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company on 10
December 2013.

Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara, the Group Financial Controller of the
Company, is the primary point of contact at the Company for the
Company Secretary.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules,
Ms. Chan has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

Shareholders’ Rights

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at
the place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called a special
general meeting.
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Shareholders to convene a special general meeting
Shareholders may convene a special general meeting of the
Company according to the provisions as set out in the Bye-Laws
and the Bermuda Law. Members holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Directors for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be called within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Directors fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so
in accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Law by written
notice at least twenty-one days before the meeting takes place in like
manner as the annual general meeting of the Company.

Putting enquiries by Shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Procedures for putting forward proposals by
Shareholders at Shareholders’” meeting

The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting
forward a proposal at a general meeting shall be:

(@ any number of members representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights at the date of the
requisition; or

(b) not less than one hundred members.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be
deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution or circulating any
necessary statement, at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong in the case of:

(i)  a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six
weeks before the meeting; and

(i) any other requisition, not less than one week before the
meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirmation that
the requisition is in proper and in order, the Board will proceed with
the necessary procedures.
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Voting by Poll

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholder
at a general meeting must be taken by poll except where the
chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates
purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a
show of hands. As such, all resolutions set out in the notice of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the company will be voted by
poll.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. The annual
report together with the relevant circular are distributed to all the
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the annual general
meeting.

Constitutional Documents
The Shareholders adopted a new set of Bye-Laws on 5 May 2015.

Investor Relations

The Company is committed to open and regular communication and
reasonable disclosure of information to its Shareholders. Information
of the Company is disseminated to the Shareholders in the following
manner:

- Delivery of annual and interim reports to all Shareholders;

- Publication of announcements on the annual and interim results
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, and
publication of other announcements and Shareholders’ circulars
in accordance with the continuing disclosure obligations under
the Listing Rules; and

- The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and Shareholders.
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Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for the
Company'’s internal control system and risk management systems and
the responsibility of day-to-day management of operational risks and
the implementation of mitigation measures lies with the Company’s
management. However, the Board recognises that no cost effective
internal control system will preclude all errors and irregularities, as a
system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board has conducted
a review of the system of internal control, which covers all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls, to
ensure the effectiveness and adequacy of the system, and the Board
believes that, in the absence of any evidence to the contrary, the
system of internal controls maintained by the Group that was in place
throughout the year and up to the date of this report, is adequate to
meet the needs of the Group in its current business environment.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare the
Company’s account for each financial period which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flows for that period. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board has
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the accounts on a going concern basis. The Directors
are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud
and other irregularities.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

-~
| AL

ZHONGHUI
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HAN TANG INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and continued in Bermuda

with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Han Tang
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 46 to 115,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Corresponding figures

Our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2014, which forms the
basis for the corresponding figures presented in the current year’s
consolidated financial statements, was qualified because of the
possible effects of the limitations on the scope of our audit, details of
which are set out in our audit report dated 9 March 2015.

An amount of approximately HK$1,075,000 relating to the gain on
disposal of Carham Assets Limited and its subsidiary, Guangzhou
Pearl River Rubber Tyre Limited (collectively the “Carham sub-group”)
has been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2014. No sufficient evidence has been provided to satisfy ourselves
as to the assets and liabilities of Carham sub-group as at 1 January
2014. As a result, we are unable to satisfy ourselves as to the gain on
disposal of subsidiaries of approximately HK$1,075,000 included in
the consolidated profit or loss.

Any adjustments to this figure as described above might have a
consequential effect on the Group’s financial performance and
cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2014, and the related
disclosures thereof in the consolidated financial statements.
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QUALIFIED OPINION

In our opinion, except for the possible effect of the matter as
described in the basis for qualified opinion paragraphs, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015, and of
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Fong Tak Ching
Practising Certificate Number PO6353

Hong Kong, 10 March 2016

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
ireBa AR EE S

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—RALEE

2015 2014
—E-FHF —F-@mE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt &k FET FHETT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS RFEREXER
Revenue Y == 7(a) 28,844 50,467
Cost of sales HERA (25,927) (48,002)
Gross profit EX 2,917 2,465
Other revenue and other netincome  Hfthl# & HEME WA 7(b) 724 28
Administrative expenses THEX (26,288) (27,998)
Impairment loss on property, ME - BERKREN
plant and equipment WIEEE 15 (130,932) -
Finance costs L& AR 8 (7,736) (7,335)
Loss before taxation FrBi AT B 18 (161,315) (32,840)
Income tax Fri8 % 11 - _
Loss for the year from continuing FERBELSEERER
operations (161,315) (32,840)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS BRI REER
Profit for the year from discontinued FEE & - K& 2% F
operations 12 - 1,075
Loss for the year FEEFE 9 (161,315) (31,765)
Attributable to: BUR AL e -
Owners of the Company RAREEA (124,871) (31,510)
Non-controlling interests FEERER (36,444) (255)
Loss for the year FEBE (161,315) (31,765)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to JRRLTIEE 2 XA THEE
owners of the Company arising from: AEGFEEEHE) OBRA
Continuing operations FEREER (124,871) (32,585)
Discontinued operations EARIEREER = 1,075
(124,871) (31,510)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

A BRmkEMEmEER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_T-AFt+-A=+—RALFE

2015 2014
—E-HF —F-mF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt &k FET FHETT
Loss for the year FEFBE (161,315) (31,765)
Items that may be reclassified HEnEEHIEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BR2ER
Exchange differences on translation of [iB 2 7B KHR
subsidiaries’ financial statements ZBREERERE (16,620) (1,040)
Reclassification adjustments for BUEMIB A RGZE AEE
foreign currency translation reserve IEBERBCEHDE
upon de-consolidating subsidiaries e ~ (4,948)
Total other comprehensive loss Hth2HEEEHE (16,620) (5,988)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FE2HEEEEE (177,935) (37,753)
Attributable to: BT AL :
Owners of the Company KAREB A (136,935) (41,365)
Non-controlling interests FEiE RS (41,000) 3,612
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEZHEEEEE (177,935) (37,753)
(Loss)/earnings per share SR (EE) B
(Hong Kong cents) (Bl
From continuing and discontinued HERCEEBREALRE
operations )
- Basic —HEK 13(a) (79.0) (20.1)
- Diluted — 3 13(b) (79.0) (20.1
From continuing operations BESEER
- Basic —Ex 13(a (79.0) (20.8)
- Diluted —#58 13(b (79.0) (20.8)
From discontinued operations BARIEREER
- Basic —ER 13(a) = 0.7
- Diluted —#8 13(b) - 0.7

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial

Statements

BERT 2 Bt B R SR TR Z —E 7
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

iRa ISR
At 31 December 2015
RZE—RAF+=-A=+—H

2015 2014
—E—RF —Z=—uF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FET AT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREHE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NERE 15 270,097 420,063
Prepaid land lease payments TRt £ 30 & FRIE 16 11,704 12,607
Prepayment for acquisition of property, WHEME - MR
plant and equipment KR ETE /I8 10,000 10,000
Goodwill Bk 18 378 378
Total non-current assets kRBEEHE 292,179 443,048
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 N E b FhiE 19 52,017 49,459
Cash and cash equivalents HWeMReSEY 20 1,317 8,382
Total current assets RBEEHLE 53,334 57,841
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables BB 5 RHEMGKIA 21 12,107 5,870
Convertible bonds A HARR (& 5 22 14,728 -
Finance lease payables ENRERE 23 1,607 1,113
Total current liabilities nBEEALE 28,442 6,983
Net current assets REBEEFE 24,892 50,858
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERREBAR 317,071 493,906
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Other payables Hh FE T 5RIE 21 993 343
Borrowings &= 24 77,708 61,867
Convertible bonds AL RS 5 22 - 13,783
Finance lease payables ENRERE 23 1,532 3,140
Total non-current liabilities FnBEEARE 80,233 79,133
Net assets EEBE 236,838 414,773
EQUITY =
Share capital A& X 25 1,581 1,581
Reserves Gl 27 163,396 300,331
164,977 301,912
Non-controlling interests FEIERR FERS 71,861 112,861
Total equity Py 236,838 414,773

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 10 March 2016. HETeR _ZE—A"F=ZA THbERKE

FilzE
Yang Liu Lo Ka Wai
B BEE
Director Director

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial — FEHT.Z B itlEl 7 474 B K2 — 867
statements
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

'A__lA )-L >4 mgny
rERAEER
For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE-_ZT-—AF+-—A=+—HILLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARERARE
Equity Foreign
component of currency Non-
Share Share  convertible Capital ~translation  Contributed  Accumulated controlling
capital ~ premium bonds reserve reserve surplus losses  Sub-total interests Total
THRES heag
Ba  BBEE  REN:  EAEE B RER%  EHER Dt FEREE it
HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK§000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
ThL ThL ThL ThL TEL Thn T#n TR Tén Tén
Note 27(a) Note22 ~ Note27b)  Note27l)  Note27(d)
Bt WEn Wb WE2O RO
At 1 January 2014 N5-mE-7-A 1,381 181,344 2263 1,553 15,447 109,665 (17.557) 294,09 69,713 363,809
Changes in equity for 2014; “3-REkEgE
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - S 1 A €11 (%) 6176
Other comprehensive income{loss):
Exchange differences on translation of:
- Subsidiaries' financial statements - - - - (4.907) - - (4.907) 3,867 (1,040)
Reclassification adjustments for
- Foreign currency translation reserve
upon de-consolidating subsidiares Z?T‘Wﬁ\;ﬁ E - - - - (4.94) - - (4.948) - (4,948)
- - - - (9,855) - - (9,859 3867 (5,988)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) - - - - (9,855) - (31,510) (41,365) 3612 (317%3)
lssue of shares on placement RERERN 200 18981 = = - - - 19,181 - 49,181
Capital contribution from non-controlling HERbFER A
nterests - - - - - - - - 108,840 108,840
Disposal of subsicaries (Note 12(o)i) HERBAR I 120)0) - - - - - - 5 - (6930 (69304
200 43,981 - - - - - 49,181 39,536 8717
At 31 December 2014 H-Z-RETZA=1-A 1,581 230325 2263 1,553 5592 109,665 (49,067) 301,912 112,861 1471
At 1 January 2015 N-5-1F-5-A 1,581 230,325 2263 1,553 5,592 109,665 (49,067) 301,912 112,861 411
Changes in equity for 2015: “E-1EHREE:
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (14871)  (124871)  (GAde)  (161315)
Other comprehensive loss Afb2EER:
Exchange differences on translation of: hEEZE:
-~ Subsidlaries’ financial statements -NBARE KSR - - - - (12,064) - - (12,064) (4,556) (16,620)
Total comprehensive loss 2EEREE - - - - (106) - (14870 (136,935 (M000)  (177.93)
At 31 December 2015 W-E-TF+ZA=1-A 1,581 230325 263 1,553 (6472) 109665  (173938) 164977 71,861 236,838

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial

statements

BERT < i 1B Z TR AR Z — BB
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

/\‘/ N Eﬁi;ﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_ZT-RF+-_A=1+—HLHFE

2015 2014
—B-—AF — M
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FAET
Operating activities R
Loss before taxation BRELATEE
— Continuing operations — HEREEE (161,315) (32,840)
— Discontinued operations — BRRIEREET = 1,075
Adjustments for: MUATERZHAE
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2 WES - (1,075)
Depreciation e 2,331 2,013
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TR 1+ 7 & IR 8
payments 248 -
Finance costs &R AN 7,736 7,335
Waiver of amounts due to former N RS AU E A B 508
subsidiaries (722) -
Loss on disposals of property, HEYWE  BELREZ
plant and equipment &1 73 b
Impairment loss on property, W BEEREBZ
plant and equipment WIEETE 130,932 -
Interest income FEUWA (1) (12)
Operating loss before working capital LEESEHR L LEEE
changes (20,718) (23,504)
Increase in trade and other receivables FEUE 5 R E b FRIE S N (3,563) (50,434)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other fH‘”%&ﬁ@m
payables & O 5,108 (1,949)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 8 28 = (28)
Cash used in operations REFMAZRS (19,173) (75,915)
Interest paid BEATF A (3,194) (652)
Net cash used in operating activities REXKFAZRE FE (22,367) (76,567)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meEReRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z—HE+-_A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—®B-HF —E-mEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FET FHTT
Investing activities REER
Prepayment to acquire property, WHEMZE - WFE Rk
plant and equipment TR FRIE - (10,000)
Purchase of plant and equipment BERE MERE (82) (5,251)
Purchase of land use right BB T (E A - (12,607)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEYWE BERREZ
plant and equipment FriS 518 -
Interest received B UF & 1 12
Net cash outflow from de-consolidation — BUHM B A R4ZEE AR Y
of subsidiaries WL 8 = (38,856)
Net cash used in investing activities HREXKFBACREFE (76) (66,702)
Financing activities R T
Proceeds from issue of shares 1T PTIS FA - 49,181
Loan from a non-controlling shareholder 7k & — KB A 7 IR
of a subsidiary REZER - 12,607
Proceeds from issue of other bonds BITHEHMEASTSRE 15,500 40,030
Repayment of finance lease payables BRENMENRE (1,114) (771)
Loans from a shareholder R E K 1,000 -
Net cash generated from financing MEELKFBCHEFE
activities 15,386 101,047
Net decrease in cash and cash RERBESEEMEDFEHE
equivalents (7,057) (42,222)
Cash and cash equivalents at FOZREeRREZEY
beginning of the year 8,382 50,604
Effect of foreign exchange rate ExEE s X8 FH
changes, net (8) =
Cash and cash equivalents at end ERZEEREESEEY
of the year 1,317 8,382
Analysis of balances of cash and RERRSFEMEARDNT
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents B RIREEEY 20 1,317 8,382

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial — FEMTZ BBk %S4 A M BEHEZ — &85

statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire MR R MY AT

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—RALEE

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 1.

The Company was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI") on 17 February 1994 and continued under the laws of
Bermuda by migration of its domicile to Bermuda on 21 October
1994. The Company was registered in Hong Kong as an oversea
company pursuant to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance on
24 May 1999.

The registered office and principal place of business in Hong
Kong are as follows:

Registered office . Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11

Bermuda
Principal place of : Suite 5207, 52/F,
business in Hong Kong Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road
Wanchai
Hong Kong
2. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 2.

The Company is principally engaged in the business of
investment holding.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group is
principally involved in (i) manufacturing of semiconductors;
and (ii) the trading of semiconductors/electronic products/
components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants that are relevant to its operations and effective
for its accounting year beginning on 1 January 2015. HKFRSs
comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; Hong
Kong Accounting Standards; and Interpretations. The adoption
of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant
changes to the Group’s accounting policies, presentation of
the Group’s financial statements and amounts reported for the
current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs
but is not yet in a position to state whether these new HKFRSs
would have a material impact on its results of operations and
financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), rounded to the nearest thousand except
for per share data.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs and the applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of the audited consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain key assumptions and estimates. It also requires the
directors to exercise their judgements in the process of
applying the accounting policies. The areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to these consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

3.

AR e B R T 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_T-AFt+-A=+—RALFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE—

E-RFET_A=T—BLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(a) Consolidation

54

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties, to determine whether it has control. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus
any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any
related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as an allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between the non-controlling
shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

4. TEESTTHE®)

(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The cost of acquisition is measured at the acquisition-
date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary
in the acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date
fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess
of the Company’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss. The fair value is added to the cost of acquisition to
calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest in the subsidiary were recognised in other
comprehensive income (for example, available-for-sale
investment), the amount that was recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised on the same basis
as would be required if the previously held equity interest
were disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The method of
measuring impairment losses of goodwill is the same as
that of other assets as stated in Note 4(u). Impairment
losses of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit
or loss and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is
allocated to cash-generating units that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition for the
purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.

AR e B R T 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_T-AFt+-A=+—RALFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—RALEE

=
N

4.

56

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Foreign currency translation

()

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

4. TEESTTHE®)
(c) sINEBME

()

(ii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE BTSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE" T AF+-_A=1t—HLEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Translation on consolidation

4, FEGTTHE(®)
(c) INEHBE (%)
(iii) %A)\EEH%#”;"

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation currency
as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in the
foreign currency translation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part of
the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

58

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. All
property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Leasehold improvements
HEMEEE
Equipment

B

Motor vehicles

e

Computer

B

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and machinery pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are available
for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Leases

(f)

The Group as lessee

(i)  Operating leases
Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
Group all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases. Lease
payments (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

(i) Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
are accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement of the lease term, a finance lease is
capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased
asset and the present value of the minimum lease
payments, each determined at the inception of the
lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the statement of financial position as finance
lease payable. Lease payments are apportioned
between the finance charge and the reduction
of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is
allocated to each period during the lease term so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the
same as owned assets.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

60

(f)

Q)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control on
the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the allowance is the difference
between the receivables’ carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. The
amount of the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss when an increase in
the receivables’ recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying
amount of the receivables at the date the impairment is
reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Cash and cash equivalents

(i)

()

(k)

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to convert the
bonds into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed
conversion price are regarded as compound instruments
consist of a liability and an equity component. At the date of
issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated
using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debt. The difference between the proceeds of
issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to
the liability component, representing the embedded option
for the holder to convert the bonds into equity of the Group,
is included in equity as equity component of convertible
bonds. The liability component is carried as a liability at
amortised cost using the effective interest method until
extinguished on conversion or redemption.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

(1)

(m)

(n)

62

Convertible bonds (Continued)

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible bonds based
on their relative carrying amounts at the date of issue.
The portion relating to the equity component is charged
directly to equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Revenues from the sales of manufactured goods and
trading of raw materials are recognised on the transfer
of significant risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered and the title has passed to the customers.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(o) Employee benefits

0]

(i)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme in Hong Kong. Contributions
are made based on 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a ceiling of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000 and are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution
retirement scheme organised by the government
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The
Group is required to contribute a specific percentage
of the payroll of its employees to the retirement
scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the retirement scheme. No forfeited
contributions may be used by the employers to
reduce the existing level of contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

64

(o)

Q)

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at
the fair value (excluding the effect of non market-based
vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date
of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of
the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on
the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest
and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during the
period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

66

(r)

(s)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.
(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Company or of a parent of the
Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(s) Related parties (Continued)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(B)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to a
parent of the Company.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

68

(t)

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
except goodwill, inventories and receivables to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-
generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

(w)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events
are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if
earlier. It also occurs when the operation is abandoned.
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4.

70

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(w) Discontinued operations (Continued)
When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, which comprises:

- The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the assets or disposal group constituting
the discontinued operation.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in these consolidated
financial statements.

(a) Legal titles of certain lands

As stated in Note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, the legal titles of certain lands have not
been transferred to the Group as at 31 December 2015.
Despite the fact that the Group has not obtained the
relevant certificates of legal titles, the Directors determine
to recognise those prepaid land lease payments on the
grounds that they expect the transfer of legal titles in
future should have no major difficulties and the Group is
in substance controlling those lands.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.
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5.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(a) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group's
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values
are different to those previously estimated, or it will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

(b) Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment
The Group appointed an independent professional valuer
to assess the fair values of property, plant and equipment.
In determining the fair values, the valuer has utilised a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates. The
Directors have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions. Based on this valuation, impairment
of property, plant and equipment has been made since
the carrying amounts of certain property, plant and
equipment are higher than their fair values.

(c) Impairment loss of trade receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses of trade
receivables resulting from the inability of the customers
to make the required payment. The Group bases the
estimates on the ageing of the accounts receivable
balance, customer credit-worthiness, and historical write-
off experience. If the financial condition of the customers
were to deteriorate, actual write-offs might be higher
than expected and could significantly affect the results of
future periods.

(d) Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The
Group carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions
and tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax
treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically
to take into account all changes in tax legislations.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet
used and deductible temporary differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the unused tax credits can be
utilised, management’s judgement is required to assess
the probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and deferred tax assets
are recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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6.

72

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines (products and
services) and geography. In a manner consistent with the way
in which information is reported internally to the directors
of the Company for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following two reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

The Group has presented the following two reportable
segments. These segments are managed separately. Each
segment offers very different products and services:

1. Trading business
2. Manufacturing of semiconductors

The trading business derives its revenue primarily from the
trading of petroleum and semiconductors/electronic products/
components.

The manufacturing of semiconductors segment is still in
the construction phase and has not yet started commercial
operations.

The manufacturing of tyres segment derived its revenue
from the manufacture and sale of various types of tyres for
commercial vehicles and it was de-consolidated with effect from
1 January 2014.

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the directors of
the Company monitor the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the following
basis:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of other corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include trade and other
payables, shareholders’ loans, finance lease payables and
the liability components of convertible bonds, all of which
are attributable to the activities of the individual segments
with the exception of other bonds payable, other finance
lease payables and other corporate liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(@)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arose from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.
There was no inter-segment sale and transfer during the
year (2014 Nil).

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“adjusted EBITDA" i.e. “adjusted earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation”, where
“interest” is regarded as including investment income
and “depreciation and amortisation” is regarded as
including impairment losses on non-current assets. To
arrive at adjusted EBITDA, the Group’'s earnings are
further adjusted for items not specifically attributed to
individual segments, such as directors’ emoluments and
auditor’s remuneration and other head office or corporate
administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted EBITDA, the executive directors of the Company
are provided with segment information concerning
revenue (including inter-segment sales, if any), interest
income and expense from cash balances and borrowings
managed directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation and impairment losses and additions to non-
current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with reference
to prices charged to external parties for similar orders.
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6.

74

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(@)

6. TEE#Hme)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (a)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the executive directors of the Company
for the purpose of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014 is set out below:

THEFRE  BRERREM)
RHBERKESERAMEA
RAPTEEREAEEARE"F
—HER-F-MF+-A=+—
BLIEFEZ A2/APERMT -

2015
2-1f
Continuing operations
o Le-ES S
Trading  Manufacturing of
business  Semiconductors Sub-total Unallocated Total
BR%K EEREYER it AR it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEL TER TR TR TR
Revenue from external customers RENPER2UE 28,344 - 28,844 28,344
Reportable segment loss (adjusted EBITDA) 7235285 (&BZERITDA) (2,488) (2,062) (4,546) (4,546)
Interest income T 0N - 1 1 - 1
Finance costs RENR (65) (2,099) (2164) (5572) (1.736)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (348) (248) (59) (1,983) (2579
Impairment loss on property, % BERZERESE
plant and equipment - (130,932) (130,932) - (130,932)
Income tax expense FENR - - - - -
Reportable segment assets DES vk 46,318 286,485 332,803 12,710 345,513
Additions to non-current segment assets RERTFERRDNBEE
during the year - 1 n 5 82
Reportable segment liabilities T2HRHERE 5,233 29,034 34,267 74,408 108,675
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. DEER#)
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (a) TAEEE  BENKBEE)
2014
2
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
REEERH BAHEE
Trading Manufacturing of Manufacturing
busingss  Semiconductors Sub-total of Tyres Unallocated Total
E55h EEmEvERE WG GERERR pih &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Tt Tén Tt T Thn Thr
Revenue from external customers RENDEF ZUE 50,467 - 50,467 - 50,467
Reportable segment profit/{oss) T2EAEEH/ (E8)

(adjusted EBITDA) (E5EERITDA) 219 (595) (2,787) 1,075 (1.7112)
Interest income FlasA - f f - 11 1
Finance costs BEIL (49) (4,177 (4225 - B,110) (7.33)
Depreciation i (132) - 3) - (1781) 2013)
Income tax expense FERER - - - - - -
Reportable segment assets PES vk 3537 435,679 479216 - 21613 500,889
Additions to non-current seqment assets  WERFEEEHNEEE

during the year 1,734 131,485 133219 - 17713 140,992
Reportable segment liabilties PRVt 1,130 13784 14914 = 71,02 86,116
Reconciliations of reportable segment loss (b) T2 IEEE 2 $0E

2015 2014
—E-hF —E—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHTT
Reportable segment loss A 2w HETE

(continuing operations) (BB EE) (4,546) (2,787)
Finance costs B AN (7,736) (7,335)
Depreciation and amortisation PrE Ny (2,579) (2,013)
Impairment loss on property, M - BE&RERERSE

plant and equipment (130,932) -
Interest income F B WA 1 12
Unallocated expenses RAOEHAX (15,523) (20,717)
Consolidated loss before taxation REBRTLRIESE

(continuing operations) (BB %) (161,315) (32,840)

Annual Report 2015 F5 75



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4R E

2N ==

BTSRRI RE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE_ZT-—RF+-A=+—BHILFE
6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. THEHM#)
(c) Geographic information (c) HhlE & F}
The following is an analysis of the geographical location TR ROAEERBINBE P 2K
of (i) the Group's revenue from external customers and HwRNAEEFERSEEZFIE
(ii) the Group’s non-current assets. The geographical AT - BE ARSI AR 7S 3k
location of customers refers to the location at which TEERZME - KEEZIERE
the services were provided or the goods delivered. The BEBEME  WMERZHE - BN
Group's non-current assets include property, plant and :I:fMEfMIE WEEMZE - BE &
equipment, prepaid land lease payments, prepayment BETENRIEREGE - W% - &
for acquisition of property, plant and equipment and )%&ax{% WHEDE - BB MR E
goodwill. The geographical location of property, plant ZFE R R FEA it E R IE
and equipment, prepayment for acquisition of property, ZHTE AT EEEERFERAL
plant and equipment and prepaid land lease payments BB o LA E Z FTIEM A
are based on the physical location of the asset under DEZEBEEE KT
consideration. In the case of intangible assets, it is based [& o
on the location of operation to which these intangibles are
allocated.
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMBEF 2R EEFRBEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RF _—_T-MOF ZE-HF — PO
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FHET
Mainland China o B K fE 28,844 50,467 288,669 434,848
Hong Kong BB - - 3,510 8,200
28,844 50,467 292,179 443,048
(d) Information about major customer (d) BEFEEFZEH
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the revenue BE-ZT-AF%T-A=1+—H8L
from the Group’s largest customer was 100% (2014: FE  REAKEGEARFZ WS
approximately 94%) of the Group's total revenue. MAEEBWFE100%(=ZF — N
F  8994%) °
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7. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER 7.

NET INCOME

Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods sold and
services rendered less discounts and returns for each
reporting period and is analysed as follows:

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e B R T 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_T-AFt+-A=+—RALFE

Wazm - Htlhzm & A i F

WA

(@) WREMHESm&ARERE
BEERERITNMERE  ZofmW
™

Continuing operations

and total

BESEERRB
2015 2014
—E-HF —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Trading of petroleum products BEEAMEmM = 49,244

Trading of semiconductors/electronic BEYEE BT

products/components Em/ 5 28,844 1,223
28,844 50,467

The analysis of other revenue and other net income is as

follows:

(b)  H i Y as K B F WA 2 9 4 4A
™

Continuing operations

and total
FEREEB KA
2015 2014
—E-RF —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Other revenue H b
Interest income on bank deposits RITFER 2 FEHA 1 12
Waiver of amounts due to former A PR RIBT B A Bl RIE
subsidiaries 722 -
723 12
Other net income Hi BB A
Gain on foreign exchange b 5 i e 1 16
724 28
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E-RE+ZA=+—RHIFE

FINANCE COSTS 8. MMERK
Continuing operations
and total
BESEER KRBT
2015 2014
—E-—REF —E—pUF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interests on: ATIEE®AE
— convertible bonds — A} ES 1,403 1,306
— shareholders’ loans —BREER - 2,528
— other bonds —HMES 5,434 2,975
— loan from a non-controlling shareholder ——W B R IEZER
of a subsidiary (wholly repayable within Rz B (AR
five years) AERNBHEE) 695 343
— finance lease —REHE 204 183
7,736 7,335

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss for the year is arrived at after charging/(crediting) the

following:

9. FEBR

FEBEEHRGIAATEEA :

Continuing operations

and total
BELSEXER KRBT
2015 2014
—Z2-I1f% —T-WF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Cost of inventories FEKA 25,927 48,002
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) {EEXAN(BEEEZE)
— Wages, salaries and other benefits — %% - HMREMER 8,271 6,955
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions — —iRREFIET 2tk 277 117
Auditor’s remuneration ZERDEN 5 580 680
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments — JEF -+ 18 & 5% T8 1 4
(Note 16) (Mt3E16) 248 -
Depreciation (Note 15) #rEe (fisE15) 2,331 2,013
Loss on disposals of property, plant and HEME - BERREEE
equipment 73 -
Gain on foreign exchange, net b 5 s ) F 58 (1) (16)
Operating lease charges BEMHES N 5,875 5,032

Han Tang International Holdings Limited ZEEIERZRER AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_T-AFt+-A=+—RALFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 10. EERTHEARZME
EMOLUMENTS
(i)  Emoluments of directors and chief executive (i) EFBRITHAEZHNE
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven ERNENEtR(ZT—HF :
(2014: eleven) directors who held office during the year +—R)FREBZEETSEZM
were as follows: T
2015
—Z-1%
Retirement
Salaries and scheme  Discretionary
Fees  other benefits  contributions bonuses Total
we HERHEMER ROKETEIHR BT @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR FET FHER TR
Chairman E
Yang Liu 52 - 1,200 - - 1,200
Executive director HTES
Lo Ka Wai BxE - 1,200 18 - 1,218
Non-executive director ~ FHITES
Xu Lei #"E 360 - - - 360
Independent non- BYFHTES
executive directors
Lai Ho Man, Dickson B 180 - - - 180
Wang Xiao Chuan TE 180 - - - 180
Wong Lit Chor, Alexis HFIA) 180 - - - 180
Liu Hongjun 2= 75 - - - 75
975 2,400 18 - 3,393
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BE_ZT-RF+-_A=1+—HLHFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

80

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(i)  Emoluments of directors and chief executive

10. EERITHARME 2
() BFERTHAAZNE (&)

the Company until such position was replaced by Yang Liu on
2 January 2014 and his emolument disclosed above included
those of services rendered by him as the Chief Executive

Officer.

Han Tang International Holdings Limited ZEEIERZRER AR

(Continued)
2014
It Stk
Retirement
Salaries and scheme Discretionary
Fees other benefits contributions bonuses Total
e HeREMEN RN B MIEEA Hobs
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT FTET FAL FET
Chairman £
Yang Liu (appointed as BE (R=_Z—NF
chairman on 1/9/2014) NA—BEZTR
ES:) - 1,300 - - 1,300
Goh Nan Kioh (resigned REE RZ2-—mF
on 2/1/2014) —RZB&fF) - - - - -
Executive directors HITEE
Lo Ka Wai ExE - 1,300 17 - 1317
Wang Shu Jie (resigned TE# (R-T-NF
on 1/9/2014) NA—HET) 50 - - - 50
Goh Nan Yang (resigned 2@ (R-Z—M%F
on 31/3/2014) ZA=+—HE&f) 18 - - - 18
Non-executive director  FHITEE
Xu Lei %"E 240 - - - 240
Independent non- BYKHTES
executive directors
Lai Ho Man, Dickson A 195 - - - 195
Wang Xiao Chuan TE) 195 - - - 195
Wong Lit Chor, Alexis F2U7) 195 - = = 195
Liu Hongjun 2= 75 - - - 75
Yeow See Yuen BRE (RZF—MmE
(re-designated as a mA=+mA
non-executive director AERIERTES
on 24/4/2014 and TR=B—IE
resigned on 16/6/2014) ANATRABHT) 34 = = = 34
1,002 2,600 17 - 3,619
Notes: ffsE -
(1) During both years, no remuneration was paid by the Group to (1) RZMEFEAN @ KEEBERE
any of the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining MEEL MERME - EAIMAZ
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the R INAREE 2 584 K E B
directors waived any remuneration during both years. BEE o  REZMEEENRN - #EF
fAIZEEREEMAME -
(2)  Goh Nan Yang had also been the Chief Executive Officer of Q) ZREANARATTHER HZE

BEBUN_—_Z—NE—A—HH
BEEZ AL h EXEEHNE
BREEEETBER T IRERE 2
< -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE BTSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_T-AFt+-A=+—RALFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 10. EERTHREARZME &
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(i) Five highest paid employees (i) AEREHLIES
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, EREZEaMe@AT WML (=
two (2014: two) were directors of the Company whose T—NF : MB)BARAESE -
emoluments are disclosed in Note 10(i). The emoluments WE ST 10(0)IHE - =%
of the three (2014: three) individuals other than director (ZZE—WF : =F) AL (WIER
of the Company were as follows: REIEF) M0 :
2015 2014
—E-AF —T-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Bonuses TE4L - -
Salaries and allowances e KER 1,794 1,851
Retirement scheme contributions RREF B R 23 38
1,817 1,889
The emoluments of the three (2014: three) individuals FEEeMe s =% (ZF—H
with the highest emoluments are within the following F=R)ALTZMEeHBELDT -
bands:
2015 2014
—E-AF —E-EF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A ANEL
Nil — HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001% T2 1,500,000/ 7T 1
3 3
None of the directors and these highest paid employees BE_ZT—RAFR-_ZT—NF+=
waived any emoluments or received any inducement to A=+—RHILFE  EBEZhZFH
join or compensation for loss of office during the years = 5 (B B B IR E W B 2 2
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. EERERBIMARE B 2 85 kBt
B {5 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_T-—RF+-A=T—HItFE

11. INCOME TAX

(@) No provision for profits tax in Bermuda, the BVI, the (a)
PRC or Hong Kong has been made as the Group has
no assessable profits derived from or earned in these
jurisdictions for the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014.

(b) A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to (b)
the (loss)/profit before taxation at the statutory tax rates
to income tax expense at the effective tax rates of the

1. FiB8H

AEBEWEAARE  KBRELE
& PEKXFBZNESHRIELE
- REARAEEREBE_T—H
FRZE-NF+_A=+—HI
FEPETERZFRAERES
of BRER R ER B 7 ©

R IR A TE B R 5T B @ AR BB AT
(B18) i 7 2 RSB R E
AEBEERBEFEZMBEHRAX

82

Group is as follows:

HERINE ¢

2015 2014
—E-AF —ET—EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit/(loss) before taxation B ATEA(F5E)
— from continuing operations —REFBLEED (161,315) (32,840)
— from discontinued operations —READKIEEED - 1,075
(161,315) (31,765)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, REBERIEREER
calculated at the rates applicable B (R EB Y =R
to profit/(loss) in the tax jurisdictions AEZBRBRIEEEE
concerned BiIE
— Mainland China @25% — B RBER25%
(2014: 25%) (ZZ—M% : 25%) (33,960) (517)
- Hong Kong @16.5% —BBR165%
(2014: 16.5%) (ZZ—W%F : 16.5%) (4,204) (4,899)
(38,164) (5,416)
Tax effects of: T EIEREE
Non-deductible expenses A HOF B 2 35,089 2,004
Non-taxable income B AR BB (1) (199)
Deferred tax assets not recognised NFEARER 2 BEIEFL TR
during the year EE 3,076 3,611
Income tax P57 - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_T-AFt+-A=+—RALFE

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(a) Rodez Investments Limited (“Rodez”), a wholly owned

12. ERIEEERER 2 FERF

(@ AARZ2EHKB R A Rodez

subsidiary of the Company, received demand letters
from Pacific Union Pte Ltd. (“Pacific Union”) and KL-
Kepong International Limited (“KL-Kepong”) in April 2014
demanding repayment of the respective principal and
interest accrued and claiming that an event of default
had occurred. In response to these, the Company has on
behalf of Rodez entered into negotiations with Pacific
Union and KL-Kepong respectively. Rodez received letters
from Pacific Union and KL-Kepong on 9 July 2014 and
11 July 2014 respectively, stating that payments had not
been received by the deadlines and they had exercised
their rights and powers under the deed of charge by
transferring the secured shares in Carham Assets Limited
("Carham”), the then subsidiary of the Company, to
themselves.

As a result of the transfer of the 55 shares in Carham
to Pacific Union, the Company’s shareholding (through
Rodez) in Carham is reduced to 45% with effect from 24
April 2014. As a result of the transfer of the 45 shares in
Carham to KL-Kepong, the Company (through Rodez) no
longer has any shareholding in Carham with effect from
29 May 2014. This means that the Company no longer
has any interest in Carham and its subsidiary — Guangzhou
Pearl River Rubber Tyre Limited (collectively referred to as
the “Carham sub-group”).

According to the loan agreements, upon occurrence of
an event of default, all amounts, outstanding principal,
accrued interest, default interest and any other amount
shall become due and payable immediately. The security
created by the share charges covers all amounts due under
the loan agreements, which include outstanding principal,
accrued interest, default interest and any amount payable
by the borrower under the terms of the loan agreements
and share charges.

Investments Limited ([Rodez | )7
ZZE— U H A EEPacific Union
Pte Ltd. ([ Pacific Union | ) R KL-
Kepong International Limited
([KL-Kepong|) z fiE @kt - ZE3k
HEZERBAS RERFE - W5
RENBMHERAE - Hik  ARQA
2 X & Rodez 7 Al #Pacific Union
K KL-KepongiEf ° Rodezid =&
—MFEANEBR=ZZE—NFLA
+— B % 5l & Pacific Union & KL-
Kepong# & (h - 5= R E Z ™ A
RNAEIRER KRB - HBE1T
FHEMRIBEE T 2 Mg - &
EARAEERAIE 2R B Carham
Assets Limited([ Carham )& #
HROTEES -

Pacific Union# ##:E 55f% Carham
&% - A= —PFP A =+
A &2 A (& #Rodez) K
Carham Z I # Bl ik Z45% ° KL-
Kepong & & 3% 45 f% Carham & 17
% ARF](FEiBRodez) THERFAE
CarhamfE [zt - B =T — N4
AA-t+HhBARBEK - EEKE
NN B TEB#A Carham R H KB
RAEMK IR AR AR (5B
([CarhamF&B ) ) (EfaiEss o

REBER M - WELERENS
- ERE  REEAS &
RIS - BN S RAEFEARIEA
B ABH R B TEIE » AR
FEFTRR S 2 R R E B K e T
RBRZIERIA  BRREELS
B EEAE - ENMBERETR
RE Bk M BAD HRC 2 (R E
ZEIFRIA -
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12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

84

(@)

(b)

(Continued)

The Board considers that the Group no longer has the
power to exercise its right as a shareholder of Carham
and thus has lost its control over Carham as a result of
transferring its 55% and 45% equity interests upon the
enforcement of the aforesaid loan securities on 24 April
2014 and 29 May 2014 respectively. Accordingly, the
Directors consider that it is inappropriate to consolidate
the financial statements of Carham sub-group into
the Group and it is de-consolidated and classified
as discontinued operation during the year ended 31
December 2014.

Since the Group has been unable to obtain necessary
financial information of the Carham sub-group for the
year ended 31 December 2014, the Directors consider
that, in the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2014, the financial information
of Carham sub-group should be de-consolidated with
effect from 1 January 2014. According to the Group's
accounting policy, when the Company loses control of a
subsidiary, it will account for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary. The calculation of the financial
impact on de-consolidating Carham sub-group was based
on the latest available unaudited financial statements of
Carham sub-group as at 31 December 2013, which was
further set out as below Note 12(b)(ii).

NR.ERLEREXERZFEERN
(&)
(a) (#&)

BEETRE AEETBEET
& BCarhamAI IR R 2 #EF| - &
Bk EY Carham 2 1 Hil%E - 115
FR P2 7E 58 I B0 17 B 4L B B
% AEBSRN-_Z—WFMNA
“tHWBEE-ZE-NFERA=-TA
B8 3 HES55% K% 45% R AE -
it - EER A B CarhamFEE 2
HHHREREEARERNEEBETE
E MRAEBE_FT—WOFE+=-A
=+ BIEFEBEIUHEGZAE AR
WHRBAE R I EZET -

HRASEEEIREEEZE T N0
F+=—A=+—HIEFECarham
FTEBZVEHBER  WES
RE - REBEEZE_T-—NOF+_H
—t+—RALFEZEAMBRE
A - Carham T 5B 2 B 75 & KL fE
B-ZE—mF—A— EI%LHX/%T/\
ABR - IREBEASEE 2 S5THUR
RARKEH—HRBAR 2 %U
- BEAEEZWEB A TZE
ERENR - A EEUHE AT E
CarhamFE&B 2 WFFE - HE
RAER Z CarthamFEBER -
— =T A=+ —HZRAOHE
KEZMERE  ELFFEHRHIIR
T EE12(b)i) ©

The analysis of the results, net assets and cash (b) IR || 4o %%‘ﬁgﬁ% &
flows from discontinued operations /X/%fé &fﬁ ERES T/?
(i) The results of the discontinued operations (i) CRIEQEHEREE
2015 2014
—E-AHE E — PO 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAETT
Gain on disposal of discontinued B B AR AT RS W s
operations - 1,075

As mentioned in Note 12(a), the financial
information of Carham sub-group was
de-consolidated from 1 January 2014, thus no profit
or loss item from the operation was recorded for
year ended 31 December 2014.

AP FE12(a) BTt © Carham T4 B 2
FBEREE-_E—HE—HA—HER

HiEa AR Bt REE-F—HF
TTA=ZT-BULSEHERBLER

AR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_T-AFt+-A=+—RALFE

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM 1N.CRIEREEK CFERA

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) (&)

(b) The analysis of the results, net assets and cash (b) BRI EBELNEE &
flows from discontinued operations (Continued) EFERBELHESNE)
(i) The net assets of the discontinued operations (i) CREREEBRNEE

E
Carham sub-group as at the date of de-consolidation REESZEARBHZ
Carham ¥ 5 E
2014
= shusfes
HK$'000
FHT
Property, plant and equipment LE Y 164,983
Prepaid land lease payments TEfT LI & FRIE 16,225
Inventories FE 150,620
Trade and other receivables EWE 5 R HE M FRIE 98,245
Pledged bank deposits DREIRIT I 1,153
Cash and cash equivalents RELREEFED 38,856
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 K B I8 (170,423)
Provisions B (6,534)
Bank and other borrowings R1T M E b fE K (61,447)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIRAE (574)

Net assets de-consolidated EECEAERE AR EEFE 231,104
Non-controlling interests SEFRE IR A (69,304)
Foreign currency translation reserve YN A R (4,948)
Gain on disposal & W 1,075
Satisfied by: BATHAEZN

Derecognition of the loans and accrued EUHERE R MIER TS

interests 157,927

Net cash outflow arising on disposal: AEEMEERIR SR FEE

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHEZHeRESSEY (38,856)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—RALEE

13. BASIC AND DILUTED (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER 13. SlREAXR#E (5E) BF

SHARE

(@) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (a)
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share
is based on the loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$124,871,000 (2014:
approximately HK$31,510,000) and the weighted average
of approximately 158,128,000 ordinary shares (2014:
approximately 156,538,000 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year calculated as follows:

(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company

SRRE A (E518) B F
BRER(EBR), /B THBRBEARR
AR AE(LE1847124,871,000
B (ZZE—MH4E : 931,510,000
BIT) RAFE 2 B BT E RN
HEE ) E#7158,128,000 0% 38 A%
—ZE—F : 4156,538,0000%
TERFTENT -

ERREEAEMN(BE) BF

(basic) (BZ)
2015 2014
=F-1% i
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FAT
From continuing operations REREC S (124,871) (32,585)
From discontinued operations REDKRIEEEER - 1,075
Total st (124,871) (31,510)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic) EERMEFIGB(ER)
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—OF
‘000 ‘000
TR T
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—HA—Bz2BBTEER 158,128 138,128
Effect of share placement DB E 2 &
(weighted average) (InAEFEH ) - 18,410
Weighted average number of ordinary F Az E RN 15 8
shares for the year 158,128 156,538

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (b)
For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the
computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the conversion of the Company’s outstanding convertible
bonds since their exercise would result in decrease in the
loss per share from continuing operations.
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SR EE (E51R), BT
REBEZE-Z-—AFR_T—WF
T-A=1+—HLEE  EEK
BEBRY BRROCBBRARFH
REHZ ATBRES - BRULES
BUKREFELEEB 2 BREE
W



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE BTSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_T-AFt+-A=+—RALFE

14. DIVIDEND 14. B2
The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend EET AEZREE_ZE—0HF+=
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil). A=+ —BLEFERNEAMKRE(ZE
—PO4F | £E) o
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BMEKRRE
2015
“E-1F
Leasehold  Construction- Motor
improvements in-progress  Equipment vehicles ~ Computer Total
nENE
£ HRIR B A& Bk @it

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn

(Note (a) (Note (b))
(Hi&(a) (H3E(b)
Cost: A
At 1 January 2015 RZE-R%E-F-H 1,575 411,813 1,365 7,001 334 422,088
Additions RE - - 82 - - 82
Disposals i (32) - (92) - ) (126)
Exchange differences EizE - (21,690) 3) - ) (21,69)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+-A=1-A 1543 390,123 1,352 7,001 329 400,348
Accumulated depreciation and impairment: 2 ERFE
At 1 January 2015 RE-1%5-A-A 531 - 232 1174 88 2,025
Charge for the year (Note 9) SRk (Ho) 563 - 270 1,400 98 2,331
Impairment loss HEFE - 130,932 - - - 130,932
Disposals e (22) - (25) - (1) (48)
Exchange differences EREE - (4,988) 1) = = (4,989)
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-af+-B=1-H 1,072 125,944 476 2,574 185 130,251
Carrying amount: BEfE:
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-F+-B=1-H an 264,179 876 4,421 144 270,097
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_T-—RF+-A=T—HItFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

88

15. ¥1% - BERRE2)

2014
ez Sy
Plantand  Leasehold ~Construction- Motor
Buldings  machinery improvements in-progress  Equipment vehicles  Computer Total
R ES
BT HRREZE R HEIE qE e gk a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tian Tin Than TEL TAL Fin TEL Fin
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(MHa) (Mo
Cost: A
At 1 January 2014 NZE-EE-A-H 78,374 82,031 - 22,662 1 730 - 183,808
Disposal of subsidiaries HENEAT
(Note 12(b)i) (k12000 (18374)  (82,031) - () - - - (183067)
Additions nE - - 1,575 108,840 1,365 6,271 334 118385
Transfer from prepayment BRERMTE - - - 302973 - - - 302,973
Written off Fiai] - - - - (1) - - (1)
At 31 December 2014 W-E-BETZA=1-R - - 1575 4813 1,365 7,001 334 422,088
Accumulated depreciation: ZitiE:
At 1 January 2014 R-2-RE-F-H 8,074 10,010 - - 1 12 - 18,107
Disposal of subsidiares HENEAT
{Note 12(o)ii) (R 1200)i)) (8,074 (10,010 . . - . - (18,084)
Charge for the year (Note 9) F Rk (39) - - 531 - 3 1,162 88 2013
Written off il = = = - (1) - = (1)
At 31 December 2014 R-B-MET-A=1-H - - 531 - £ 1,174 8 2,005
Cartying amount: RaEg:
At 31 December 2014 R=E-ME+-A=1-A = = 1,044 411,813 1,133 5827 246 420,063
Notes: B aE
(@)  The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its (a) AR ERAEERE ZERIIRE
construction-in-progress in 2015, having regard to the construction E%%  AEBR T -hEREEET
work on the semiconductor manufacturing factory in the PRC was EHAIKE @ EAEITERN - FHEBER
behind schedule. The reviews led to the recognition of an impairment #9130,932,000/8 T 2 BEEE - EER
loss of approximately HK$130,932,000 that has been recognised BEamlER o HEEEMNA KRB SEEZE
in profit or loss. The recoverable amount of the relevant assets has AV ERELEB L FTIEMTESR
been determined on the basis of their fair value less cost of disposal BAHME AR ARG ENTESEXNAT S
measured by reference to their depreciated replacement cost (level 2 (FZBATEH2)NLEREAETE ©
fair value measurement) by Roma Appraisals Limited, an independent
firm of chartered surveyors.
(b)  As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of the Group’s motor (b) RZZE—AFT-A=1+—H ' xEER

vehicles of HK$4,427,000 (2014: HK$5,827,000) was acquired under
finance leases.
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16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

AR e B R T 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HEZ-RAF+-A=1+—"HLFE

16. ST BEERE

2015 2014
—E-EF —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Cost: A
At 1 January w—A—H 12,607 17,861
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 12(b)(ii)) o &5 BB A R (B EE 1 2(b) (i) ) - (17,861)
Additions NE - 12,607
Exchange differences M H =58 (664) -
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—H 11,943 12,607
Accumulated amortisation: REtE#e .
At 1 January n—HA—H - 1,636
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 12(b)(ii)) BB A R (R EE 1 2(b) (i) - (1,636)
Amortisation for year (Note 9) FREHE (M) 248 -
Exchange differences M H =50 (9) -
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—H 239 -
Carrying amount: BRMEE :
At 31 December R+—-—HA=+—H 11,704 12,607

The leasehold land is held in Mainland China under medium-
term lease.

On 25 November 2014, the land transfer contract were
entered for acquisition of the land use right of a parcel of
industrial land in Kunshan for manufacture of semi-conductors
segment. Pursuant to the contract, the land premium amounts
to RMB50.6 million (equivalent to HK$63.9 million) of which
RMB10 million (equivalent to HK$12.6 million) had been settled
and classified as prepaid land lease payment upon completion
of the contract.

At 31 December 2015, the Group was in the process of
applying for the title certificates of certain land acquired by the
Group with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$11,704,000 (2014: approximately HK$12,607,000). The
Directors are of the view that the Group is entitled to lawfully
and validly occupy and use the above-mentioned land in due
course, and therefore the aforesaid matter did not have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial position as at 31
December 2015.

ME LR E A - =P AR
5o

RZE—WNFE+—HA=-+HHB ' B
WEE—MmUuRE LN T ERib 2 i
TR T EEAR - %im%
BIEEEFERSH - BREZE
iim/mﬁz%/\ﬁﬁ%o,mo,oooE(ifﬁ
B 163,900,000 7L) © B AR
10,000,0007T (#H& # 12,600,000 7T )
BEEMN YERTKERBIEARTE
N AER0E -

R—_ZE—HE+_A=+—H ' K&
EHmENEAEBRMKBENSE T LM
ZHBREzHBFE  REEED
A11,704,000 8 L (= F — WM F : 4
12,607,000 L) - EFRA ' ~5EF
BEEREEEFBIEEMLRRER
Faitds c Bt FAEBEEAEEE

S —RF+ = A =+—BHNE%RK
AP A E RS E -
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iR a BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE=Z Ha = H= |FIEEE

17. SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015

are as follows:

17. B AT

TEMBAAR-E-HF+= A

=t+—RZFHBOT

Place of establishment Issued and Proportion of
or incorporation paid-up  ownership of interest
and operation/date of capital/ BEREERLA
establishment or registered and Held by the Held by  Principal
Name incorporation paid-up capital  Company subsidiaries activities
RYFEMALE BRTR
EEHY /RN BrEx/ RE WEAR
£R AL A EMRARER o] BE TEEE
Rodez The BVI/Hong Kong/ US$1 100% - Investment holding
5 July 20M1
EBRABE/EE/ 1% 100% - REER
“E——5tAnA
Bright Eagle Holdings Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
("BEH")* 27 September 2012
SHEBERAR([H%A]) BB/ B/ 18T - 100% HEER
St 1 ey ol =
ICSce The PRC/The PRC/ US$33,955,379 - 72.79%  Design, research and development,

16 November 2005 processing, manufacturing and sale
of semiconductor, integrated circuits
and new type electronic components
and provision of related technical
consultancy services

EnET hE/hE/ 33,955,379% 7 - T279% REHECMI - RERHETE
S R AN B ANERRTRETIHURE
BB i B R RS
Charm Leader Investments Limited  Hong Kong/Hong Kong/ HK$1 100% - Maintaining the corporate office
18 October 2013
BEREBRAA BE/BR/ 187 100% - RBLERRE
“2-ZF AT
Win Million Holdings Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong/ HK$1 100% - Trading business
2 August 2013
XEXEERAT Bk B/ 15T 100% - B9%%
“T--f/\AZH
Lucky Ascent Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong/Hong Kong/ HK$1 100% - Maintaining the motor vehicles
1 November 2013
BAREERAT EE/ B/ 15T 100% - RERE
Z2-—=f1-H-H
# Interests held by Tech One Investments Limited incorporated in the f RHEREAR DA (N EBRE LS
BVI and wholly owned by the Company RN WA NREERE ) FTiE=
a Representing a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the & RRBK 2 HIMNEBER BN REGES

PRC and owned by BEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17.

The following table shows information of subsidiary that have
non-controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. The
summarised financial information presented below represents
the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

AR e B R T 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-ZT-—AF+-A=1+—BLEE

Kof- NGl
TRERHBATZ &R  HEEZHE
ERRHERS ([FEMR g YA EEmS
BEA - T2 HEEREBSRE
FAEERNA TR EA S8 -

1CSC
ERET
2015 2014
—E-—fE —ET—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Place of establishment and operation BT Je 8 EE M B The PRC The PRC
H H
Proportion of ownership interests and voting 3312 A% i 25 B 15 78 75 1
rights held by NCI R R R RELL 27.21% 27.21%
At 31 December: R+ZA=+—8:
Current assets MENEE 114 845
Non-current assets JEMENEE 275,993 424,458
Current liabilities nENBE (1,370) -
Non-current liabilities EmBAaE (296,282) (312,049)
Net assets BEZE 21,545 113,254
Carrying amount of NCI FEIERE R 2 BREE 71,861 112,861
For the year ended 31 December: BHE+-_A=T—HILFE:
Revenue g - =
Loss for the year FEEBRE (133,937) (937)
Total comprehensive loss 2HEEBEETE (150,557) (1,977)
Loss allocated to NCI HELEIEIER M 2 518 (36,444) (255)
Dividend paid to NCI XTI IR R 2 IR = =
Net cash outflow from operating activities LB 2R 7 I8 G R R (654) (752)
Net cash outflow from investing activities KEEK ZIBSR TR (77) (12,607)
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEEBZRERAFEE - 12,607
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents B kIBESEEYR LD F5E (731) (752)
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B B SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—RALEE

18. GOODWILL 18. HE
2015 2014
—E-RF —T—WF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THxT FHET
Cost: R
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—Bk+=-—RBA=+—H 378 378
Accumulated impairment losses: 2FEEEE -
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—AE+=ZA=+—H - —
Carrying amount: BRMEIE :
At 31 December R+=-_A=1+—H 378 378
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. BRE S K HMRIE
2015 2014
—E-hf —E-HEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade receivables EUE 5 I8 31,578 18,608
Less: allowance for impairment loss B OREE RS
(Note 19(b)) (MtzE19(b)) - i
31,578 18,608
Deposits paid to suppliers SN HERZES 13,228 22,328
Prepayments and deposits BN RERES 6,999 8,354
Other receivables H fth fE U Fh 18 212 169
52,017 49,459
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Ageing analysis
The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice
dates, is as follows:

AR e B R T 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_T-AFt+-A=+—RALFE

19. ERESRHEMFIE )
(a) BREC T

JEWE SFUBIREZ ARk
WranT

2015 2014
—E-HF —F-WF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Less than one year TR—%F 14,194 18,608
More than one year but less than two years  —4F A _H{BR B R4F 17,384 -
31,578 18,608
Less: allowance for impairment loss B R ERE R - -
31,578 18,608

The Group generally requests for full payments upon REE-RELHZEZGEPRRA

delivery from its trade customers but also allows certain
trade customers a credit period from 30 to 60 days (2014:
generally requests for full payments upon delivery from its
trade customers but also allows certain trade customers a
credit period terms from 30 to 60 days).

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against trade
receivables directly. The movement in the allowance for
impairment loss during the year, including both specific
and collective loss components, is as follows:

FBREI R RRETESER
RM30E0AMEEHR(ZE—m
F:—REKEZE SRR
BEMNK WTRETESEFRE
H30ZE60HMEER) -

(b) EWEZHIEHE

U B 55k 2 BB B 1R T B P 3
RERARR - BRIFAKRER SR KE
ZERIEEEN - EUER TR
EEEHR RN E 53R B
He FRREBEEREIEZD (R
RS R AR EEESS )T

2015 2014

—E-RfF —ZT—mF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHTT

At 1 January == - 51,772
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKTB AR = (51,772)

At 31 December

R+—A=+—8H
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—RALEE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

94

(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

19. EWESZ R EMFAE &)

(c)

AR SEW 5
3 SEAERI K H R 2 A B A2
FEWE SRR BRI AT

2015 2014

—E-hF —E—OF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Neither past due nor impaired I #8360 B SR (E - 1,224

Less than one year past due WMEATE—F 14,194 17,384
More than one year but less than B A —F LA E B R

two years past due 17,384 -

31,578 18,608

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there have
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Han Tang International Holdings Limited ZEEIERZRER AR

I A ORI (E < EWGRER 2 %
WHEITHIR DR EFPER -
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VEFAR daNEEERLEE
REF) K AR AR SR 2 B
B - RBBELR - BEEREL
BV BRZFERIELRERSE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE BTSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE-2—AF+-A=+—AILER

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19. ERES REMERE 2

(d) The analysis by currency of trade and other receivables is (d) FEWESBREMIIEREE Y ST
as follows: RN
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHTT
Hong Kong Dollar BT 31,094 28,571
Renminbi AR¥E 311 276
United States Dollar =TT 20,612 20,612
52,017 49,459
20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20. RERBEEEY
The analysis by currency of cash and cash equivalents is as RELKBEEFEMREEZTET :
follows:
2015 2014
—E—FEF —E—JUFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Hong Kong Dollar BT 1,219 6,754
Renminbi AR 65 375
United States Dollar E7T 33 1253
1,317 8,382
Renminbi is not freely convertible into other currencies. Under AREBTGEEEREBAEMEK - RiE
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations, the Group is A B 2R B CONE B TR AR Y - AREEE
permitted to exchange Renminbi for other currencies through EEIBEREETINEXEBBEITEA
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business. R i pk H i 5K o
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B B SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE-_Z—RE+-A=1+—HIFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

21. BNEZ R EMRIA

2015 2014

—E-RF —T—WF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THxT FHET

Trade payables FEfTE 5 /I8 4,327 S
Accruals and other payables FERTE PR I A FE N 5RIE 8,773 6,213
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost IZEHEK At E 2 & MABE 13,100 6,213
Less: non-current portion A JERNERER S (993) (343)
Current portion BVEAER 5 12,107 5,870

The analysis by currency of trade and other payables is as
follows:

ENEZREMRBZEE 200

T

2015 2014
—Z-1f%F Lk
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Hong Kong Dollar ABTT 10,664 5,077
Renminbi AR & 2,436 381
Malaysia Ringgit Bk - 755
13,100 6,213

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on invoice dates, is JENE SHRIERBEEZBHZER ST

as follows: wmR

2015 2014
—Z-51f% —T-0F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FATT
Less than one year TR—F 4,327 -
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22. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE BTSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE-2—AF+-A=+—AILER

22. AR ES

On 8 April 2013, the Company issued HK$60,000,000 3% RZZE—=FWANEB ' XAFETD
3-year convertible bonds (the “Bonds”) to not less than six RAZEAEEWEBBE B IE=F
independent third parties who are not related to the Group ([fEF+FE A 1)E1760,000,000/8 T2
(the “Bondholders”). The principal terms of the Bonds are as 3R BB =FHABRBRESR([EH]) -
follows: BEHFZEEZGERMT :

(1) Conversion price:

BInE -

(2) Interest:

AIVSNE

(3) Maturity date:

(4) Status:

A7

(5) Voting:

5
Hel

HK$2.00 per conversion share, which is subject to adjustments for
consolidation or subdivision or reclassification of shares, capitalization of
profits or reserves, rights issues and other events. Any adjustment to the
conversion price will be certified by an independent accountant jointly
appointed by the Company and the Bondholders holding 51 per cent or more
of the outstanding principal amount of Bonds. The Company will publish an
announcement upon any adjustment to the conversion price.
FREHEA D 2.008TT - AIRKRNHEHIIFAXEN DR BN FEEHEER
b~ MR R EHAMFEELRAE - HEREETEMARALARALREAES
RAEERSRES1 %I L2 BEHFRHEARRBEZBLGFAIRE - AR7A]
1 ER R B 5 I A fr] SR BB B T B 40D o

3% per annum, accrued daily on a 365-days basis and payable quarterly in
arrears.
FRERBI% - FIEIE35HEEGHRE - WERETEL -

The third anniversary of the date of issue of the Bonds, which is 8 April 2016
(the “Maturity Date”). Any unredeemed and unconverted Bonds shall be
redeemed at 100% of the outstanding principal amount together with all
interest accrued up to the maturity date in cash.
BIIESBHz2E-—AFER  ZT—A"FWANB(EIHAE]) - FKE
B RARERESBIREGREERNSEZ100%ERRTEZEHA 2 28F B
AR & HEE o

The Bonds constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured
obligations of the Company, ranking pari passu and rateably without
any preference among themselves, and with other direct, unconditional,
unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Company.
EFBRARRIZERE B4  EREREERECT  REZEKZERSF
i WEREKEAF  BHEARRHMERE  BERG  FREREEHRECTE
BREER -

The Bondholders will not be entitled to attend or vote at any meetings of the
Company by reason only of being Bondholders.

BHERAARTRERNS RESKAAMERLEARAEMAEHNE LR

o

A
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—RALEE

22. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

98

(6)

Transferability:

AR

Early redemption:

REED :

Terms of conversion:

22. ARARES &)

The Bonds may be transferred or assigned to any third party provided that
no Bond may be transferred to any person who is a connected person of the
Company unless with (i) prior notification of the Company; (ii) the consent of
the Company; (iii) full compliance of the Listing Rules; (iv) full compliance with
the requirements (if any) that the Stock Exchange may impose from time to
time; and (v) the consent (if applicable) of the Stock Exchange.
BHFUEREILETENE =7 ERTEERETERRGEEA L ZEMA
T EOHFEMEARAT  (NVESARARRE  (iTEFE LEmRA (vTE
HEMIM IR ERZRE(NE)  RVEGHERZ RS (ERA) 21550 T8l
BRI o

The Company shall not be entitled to redeem the Bonds (or any party thereof)
at any time prior to the Maturity Date, except by mutual consent of the
Bondholder and the Company.
BRIFEFFEARRNAAESAE -
BA (HEAEMELD) -

BRIA DA EEN D H A AEREED

The right of a Bondholder to convert any Bond at any time after three
months from the date of issue of the Bonds to the date falling on the 14th
day immediately prior the date of maturity of the Bonds to convert any
outstanding amount of the Bonds into the conversion shares at the conversion
price, provided that the conversion right attached to the Bonds shall only be
exercisable by the Bondholder:

EFRRAEARERERZTARR=-EAREEEEF DB EASE T HE QB
iz E QA mAREECEFERAERRD - MESHAEAEETINE
ST AT P e

(i) solong as and to the extent that immediately after such exercise, there will
be sufficient public float of the shares as required under the Listing Rules;
and

() ZBEESFBEATEEAESRER  ROKAERS EMARANETHEZR

WARFERE R

(ii) so long as such Bondholder and parties acting in concert (as defined in the
Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers (the “Takeovers Code”) with it
immediately after such exercise shall not be required to make general offer
under Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code (unless waiver from making a general
offer has been obtained from the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong).

(i) EREBEFFHAATEAAERER TSR AMBESFFAAREE -/
THAL(ERRBEBRARKERAHTRI(TYWESTRI)) AR R TR
FRARCRE2HWBEN(RIFEGSEEESF NP EEHERZEERESE
EWBEHZHR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE BTSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_T-AFt+-A=+—RALFE

22. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 22. AR ESF#)

9

Conversion shares:

Based on the conversion price of HK$2.00, a maximum number of 30,000,000
conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise of the conversion
rights attached to the Bonds in full.

B - REBERE200E8THE  BRBETEESMNERERRERETRS
30,000,000 % EE# A&7 ©
The conversion shares, when allotted and issued, will rank pari passu in all
respects with the shares in issue on the date of allotment and issue of the
conversion shares. Holders of the conversion shares will be entitled to receive
all future dividends and distributions the record date of which falls on or after
the date of allotment and issue of the conversion shares.
BCEE REBITEBRR GO - 80 &7 E NS REITERRG B2 B 8T
O ZHREMA - BRRMHIFE ASERWEG S A AR 3 RBITEIRR
NE RSB —REBRERDIK
The Bonds contain two components: liability component and EAEBERELD DR ABEIRS
conversion component. The fair value of the liability component BRI o BEIES D EP{ﬁaJr]\;E,m@J
included in non-current liabilities while the conversion BE  miERI /;}(?u[ﬁéf\x%;ﬂzz]x)ﬁ/\ﬂx
component, net of transaction costs is presented in equity as EHR 2 AR BRESELE - BE
equity component of convertible bonds. The effective interest o2 EBERERNREA9. 835%
rate of the liability component is 9.835% per annum.
The discounted cash flow method was adopted in determining z}s@aﬁE?}T{%ﬁqﬂgfﬁfﬁ/f/ﬁggﬁzigfﬁ
the fair value of the liability component (level 2 fair value Mo TN FE(E-EAFEEE) o B
measurement). The difference between the gross proceeds of ﬁEj}ﬁgﬁQ%%Zﬁﬁ%?ﬁlﬁ,ﬁ@%ﬁ@ﬁig1;\%5
the issue of the convertible bonds and fair value assigned to the SDEBRTZATERZEZER(BHERE
liability component, representing the conversion component for BABELSERARF ZEIRIS)EH
the holder to convert into equity, is included in equity (equity ARz (BNl R E 5 IR 25 2B ) ©

component of convertible bonds).
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B B SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—RALEE

22. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 22. RIRES (#)
The movement of the liability and conversion components for BEREHBRISNHRE IR 2 & 80
the reporting period is set out as below: N
Equity
component
Liability of convertible
component bonds Total
TRRES
aEHS R&EHs @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER
At 1 January 2014 R-Z—-NF—HF—H 12,927 2,263 15,190
Interest expense MERT 1,306 - 1,306
Interest paid/payable Bf/ERFIE (450) - (450)
At 31 December 2014 and RZE—NFE+-A=1+—HBRK
1 January 2015 —Z-RF—F—H 13,783 2,263 16,046
Interest expense FERY 1,403 - 1,403
Interest paid/payable Bt/ 8 (458) - (458)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-hF+-_A=+—H 14,728 2,263 16,991
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23. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had finance lease payables in

relation to motor vehicles (Note 15) as follows:

AR e B R T 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_T-AFt+-A=+—RALFE

ERmEEE
S A EL = o N ]
BUATEHEASEEE 2 EMNmERS (K
¥15) -

Present value

of minimum Minimum
lease payments lease payments
REHEENHAE RERESN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—2-Rf —T-QmF =B-HEF CZTHEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT TET THET
Not later than one year TNER—F 1,607 1,113 1,726 1,317
Later than one year but within BR—FERTEAN
five years 1,532 3,140 1,603 3,329
3,139 4,253 3,329 4,646
Less: total future interest expenses J& : A& KA B S 4a %8 (190) (393)
Present value of lease obligations FfHEZE 3,139 4,253
24. BORROWINGS 24. &R
2015 2014
—E-EF —EpE
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B ek FET FHET
Shareholder’s loan ERER a 1,000 =
Loan from a non-controlling D= R il S NEI Bl e
shareholder of a subsidiary ZER 11,943 12,607
Other bonds payable H it B ES C 64,765 49,260
Non-current JEBNEA 77,708 61,867
The borrowings are repayable as follows: EEERTREES
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHIT
In the second year = 5,500 -
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=FEERF
(BHEEREMF) 12,943 12,607
After five years AFE 59,265 49,260
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 12{@ A& At EE 77,708 61,867
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_T-—RF+-A=T—HItFE

24. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

102

(a)

(b)

*

The loan from a shareholder is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable in 3 years from the date of issue at 30 September 2015.

24. BR(®)

BYAE

(a)

IRERAEEIR - RERRATEITEH
(ZE-—RAFAA=ZTRIB=FANEE -

On 8 July 2014, ICSC entered into a loan agreement with 1t =& by R=ZE—HFLANR BHETFEHIR
B4R E AR AT (Beijing Zhongying Century Investment Co., PRELEEERAB([FR]D (BEX
Limited*) (“Zhongying”), a shareholder of ICSC holding 27.21% BFZHRE  HEHE2721%8 %)L
of its equity interest, pursuant to which Zhongying agreed to make EX® Bt PRAERH—ZFX
available an unsecured 5.6% 5-year loan in the principal amount of 4% AER®10,000,000T1%5.6% 22
RMB10,000,000 to ICSC for the payment of the tender deposit in the AFHERFEERTFELRE T UM
amount of RMB 10,000,000 as a security for submission of tender for AR #10,000,000t 55 18% 4 - fEA
purchase of the land use rights in respect of a parcel of industrial land Z2HEFREE —BUREILTHERSE
located at the north of Longfei road and the east of Fuchunjiang road, REALA - EHEIRA - @ZEEMBEL
Kunshan Economic & Technical Development Zone, Kunshan* (&L 150,481.9F Ak z TEAM 2 T FA
mHAEEEREICE - EF/IERA), occupying a total site area of ERRES -
approximately 150,481.9 square meters.
As at 31 December 2015, the Company issued corporate bonds with (c) R—ZZE—RAF+-_A=+—8 " K
total principal amounts of HK$69,500,000 (2014: HK$54,000,000) RAMETBIYUE=ZFETEREE
to several independent third parties. The bonds are unsecured, %8 /569,500,000 0 ( — & — PO F
bearing interest at rates ranging from 5% to 9% per annum and 54,000,000 7T) 2 ARfER - 2 EEFH
maturity dates ranging from two to seven-and-a-half years from the B N F5%E9% 2 EFKET
respective dates of issues (2014: unsecured, bearing interest at rates B IR RSEZBRITHBEMERE
ranging from 5% to 9% per annum and maturity dates ranging from FHE(ZZT—UF : EEF - UNT5%
seven to seven-and-a-half years from the respective date of issues). BO%ZFMNEFE  HHARTEZE
The carrying amounts of these other bonds payable as reflected in THHEMFEREFE) - RFAETIIRE
the consolidated statement of financial position approximate their RESREBEET(E_M) °
respective fair values. The fair values were determined based on
discounted cash flow approach (level 2).
The foreign currency profile of borrowings is as follows: (d) ERZINEEEGWOT :
2015 2014
—EB-FHF —TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Hong Kong Dollar BT 65,765 49,260
Renminbi ARE 11,943 12,607
77,708 61,867

for identification purpose only
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AR e B R T 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-ZT-—AF+-A=1+—BLEE

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. R4
Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.01
per share
BR0.01B T
ZEREE
'000 HK$'000
TR TET
Authorised: ERE
At 31 December 2014 and 2015 RZE-—MER-ZT—FHF
+-A=+—8H 250,000 2,500
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
At 1 January 2014 N_ZE—NF—HA—H 138,128 1,381
Share issue on placement (Note) PECERFETTR D (i) 20,000 200
At 31 December 2014 and 2015 RNZE-—NER-ZZT—RF
+ZA=+—H 158,128 1,581
Note: On 21 January 2014, the Company entered into a placing agreement s RZZF—NF—A-+—H » XA HE

with a placing agent pursuant to which the placing agent has
conditionally agreed with the Company to place 20 million placing
shares on a best efforts basis to not less than six independent placees
at HK$2.5 per placing share. The issue and allotment of the shares
was completed on 30 January 2014.

EREFTVESHE - Bt - BERES
BN A BB E IR BB E [ R DA
BB AR ARTREERMD2.58 T
£20,000,000 A% BE & A% 1 o AR 1D 81T &
REA—_T—NF—F=Z+H%K °
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B B SRR
For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE=

26.

104

E-RE+ZA=+—RHIFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

An ordinary resolution was passed by the Shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 8 September 2014 for the adoption of a new share option
scheme (the “2014 Scheme").

In accordance with the Company’s 2014 Scheme, the Board of
Directors of the Company may grant options to any director
and employee of the Group and suppliers, consultants, advisors,
agents, customers, service providers, contractors, any member
of or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any invested entity to subscribe for shares in the
Company at a price determined by the Board of Directors shall
not be less than the highest of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more
board lots of the shares on the date of grant;

(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated on the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(c)  the nominal value of a share on the date of grant.

The option may be exercised at any time within a period as
specified by the Directors, which should not be more than ten
years from the date on which an option is granted.

Operation of the 2014 Scheme will commence after all
conditions precedent have been fulfilled. As at the date of this
report, the conditions precedent have not yet been completely
fulfilled and therefore the 2014 Scheme has not yet become
unconditional and operative.

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December
2014, there was no share option granted or exercised.

Han Tang International Holdings Limited ZEEIERZRER AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27. RESERVES

The Group's reserves is set out in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of changes in equity. The nature and purpose of
reserves of the Group are as follows:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Share premium
The application of the share premium account is governed
by Section 40 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

The Company’s share premium account is distributable in
the form of fully paid-up bonus shares.

Capital reserve

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group's capital
reserve of HK$1,553,000 represents waiver of a loan from
a former non-controlling shareholder of ICSC.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the translation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in equity and of the financial
statements of the foreign operations. The reserve is not
distributable by way of cash dividends and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note

4(c)(iii).

Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the special general
meeting of the Company on 29 July 2011, the Company
reduced its issued share capital by an amount of
approximately HK$109,665,000 and transferred the
same amount to the contributed surplus account of the
Company. The contributed surplus may be utilised by the
directors in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company
and all applicable laws.

AR e B R T 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_T-AFt+-A=+—RALFE

27. #1E

AEEFBHEIERNGABEa MEMEEK
BRMGEERBEHER -  AEENFER
ZHEER BT

@) Bi7a’E
BiPEERZEAZ—AN\—F8
RERAAEIOMEE -

RRE B ERRIABRAR Z
AR

(b) BEAXfEE
RZZE—RAFR-_ZT—NF+_A
=+ —8 AEENELXRFEER
1,553,000 7T ' R EBEET
—HBIFEIEIRAR B K o

(c) SMNEHE
SN S B B RN E I IR
AMELZMAENZHE  ARE
HE BRI KB K 2 BB R
RHER - HETEUASREZH
KHIE + WREH A FEZ
BEBRES -

(d) E#HEER
BER-_Z—F+A-+HBE
TZARBIRREEI RS BB ZIR
FHR ARFBEIREBBEITRA
#9109,665,0007 7T + I 15 7% & 58
ERARDRIZEHBHBIES - &
FAREBEADNRZARMAEETE
BREGESAELAS o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—RALEE

27. RESERVES (Continued) 27. #E 2
(e) Distributability of reserves (e) AIHEDKFIE
At 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount of the R-_E—RAF+-_A=+—H: 7
Company'’s reserves available for distribution to its owners TR FTANRABEES AZNATIE
was HK$163,396,000 (2014: HK$316,283,000). #4258 /163,396,000 T (=T

—PU4E : 316,283,000 7T) °

The Company'’s reserves are as follows: RAT BT -
Equity
component of
Share  convertible Contributed Accumulated
premium bonds surplus losses Total
TRRES
R EE R&EHs EREN 2 BB @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TERT TER TER
At 1 January 2014 R-Z-NF—AF—H 181,344 2,263 109,665 (14,760) 278,512
Loss for the year FEEER - - - (11,210) (11,210)
Issue of shares on REERETRGD
placement 48,981 - - - 43,981

At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—ME+-fA

=+—H 230,325 2,263 109,665 (25,970) 316,283
At 1 January 2015 R-E-1&-A—H 230,325 2,263 109,665 (25,970) 316,283
Loss for the year FEEE - - - (152,887) (152,887)

At 31 December 2015 R=Z-R1&+=H
=+—H 230,325 2,263 109,665 (178,857) 163,396
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_T-AFt+-A=+—RALFE

28. COMMITMENTS 28. &iE
(@) As at 31 December 2015, the Group had capital @ MZZE—RF+=—A=+—H K
commitments not provided for in the consolidated SERGEVBHRERARBEE &
financial statements as follows: AAEPENT -
2015 2014
—E-RF —FWF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Contracted for =EKS]
— Manufacture of semiconductors —EEREVERENE
segment (continuing operations) (FEKREER) 55,337 58,032
(b) As at 31 December 2015, the Group has total future by RZZT—HF+=—A= Jr SN
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating SEBBTAIHECEHE BN
leases payable as follows: RRFERENHETHAT
2015 2014
—E—-afF —E-HEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year —FA 2,504 4,947
After one year but not —FRETBBRAF
more than five years - 2,534
2,504 7,481
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the AT E N TEE AN EB G EH A T 3t
Group for certain of its offices and staff quarters. Leases AEREIERRNZESE - EE
are negotiated for an average term of two years and Z BT A HEME - FAEHIRE
rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do not include SEFE M T EEKAEE -

contingent rentals.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE—

E-RFET_A=T—BLFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management policies

The Group’s financial risk management policies seek to
ensure that adequate financial resources are available for
the development of the Group’s business whilst managing
its foreign currency, interest rate, market, credit, liquidity
and cash flow risks. The Group operates within defined
guidelines that are approved by the Board and the policies
in respect of the major areas of treasury activity are as
follows:

(i)

108

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets
and liabilities are principally denominated in the
functional currencies of the Group entities. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s borrowings bear interest at fixed

29. €RTH

(i)

TEE SR BRI R

AEEBZERBERERER  §4&
BRAEEESEHAMEEIRI
BRANEEZ EG MK EREIEAEIN
B -FX. W5 F8 hHEe
KR RERRE - AEEKZRRBREE
EefECEEESIEE X2
EREE 2 BRI ¢

(a) SMERBR
HRAREBE KRB XZH R
5 BERBBEIEULSE
BIZXBERIEEE
SIME - BURYE 2 HME Rl B &
% AL E B AT EFRINE

RPEENBEFIRIINE L
PR e $%lhﬁ BER
HmEEms &Rk - XER
ﬁﬁ%%%§ﬂ$ékm%
PEE LR

(b) F=mEB
REE 7 B FIRE E M R E

interest rates and therefore are subject to fair value 8 - [E I ES A EEMNEE
interest rate risk. The Group's interest rate profile as o REBZ AR REE
monitored by management is set out below: BERR - WHIWT :
Effective 31 December Effective 31 December
interest rate 2015 interest rate 2014
—E-IF LM%
ERFE t=A=t+-H ERAE +=A=+—H
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
% TET % FTHET
Fixed rate borrowings: EEER
Loan from a non-controlling L SER il =UNGIE S
shareholder of a subsidiary PR AR 2 B X 5.6% 11,943 5.6% 12,607
Other bonds payable HiENES 7.5%-10.7% 64,765 7.5%-10.7% 49,260
Convertible bonds AR ES 9.8% 14,728 9.8% 13,783
Finance lease payables ERMERE 4.7%-7.0% 3139 4.7%-7.0% 4,253
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(i)  Financial risk management policies (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis
At 31 December 2015 and 2014, as the Group had
no significant bank deposits and interest bearing
liabilities at variable rate, the management consider
the risk is not significant.

(b)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group's exposure to credit risk, or the risk of
counterparties defaulting, arises mainly from trade
and other receivables and deposits with financial
institutions. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored
on an ongoing basis.

(i)

Trade and other receivables

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the total carrying amounts
of these financial assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position reduced by
the effects of any netting arrangements with
counterparties.

In respect of trade receivables, the Group’s
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The default risk of the industry
and country in which customers operate also
has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser
extent. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group has a certain concentration of credit
risk as the largest debtor is approximately 55%
(2014: approximately 93%) of the total trade
receivables. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from its customers.

ire R R M
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+_A=+—HLFE

29. @M T HE»®)
() LEEREERF &)
(b) FI=XRERRZ)
Fl 2= B R JZ T
RZZE-—RAER_FT—NF
+-A=+—8 aRAE
BWEEKRETEARLTR
FENFEAGE EEER
BRBRITTEK -

() FERR
AEBEZEERBRIEFH
TETREEZRAR  XBE
EBERKE S M EARIEAIA
EREmMEE TR - B8
BOHEEERE  LHZ
HEERBETHESE -

(i) EERESREMTHIA
E=EERREREY
BHRRKRABHEERE
B2 BREAR SR B F
7 EAINRE B2 %

2 .
2

MEWE ZFFHIEME
REBEFEY 2 EER
BREEXEEP ZER
BEMTE TP &E
FIEfTERBRZEL
BETEREZET
HEERREEATE -
R IR & HAR 4 R B
rEBBFETEEST
Rb: - B&RAEBS AL
B SRR KRB REL
55% (ZZF—MUFE : 4
93%) - AEE—HKH
SERFRGEESR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
E-RE+ZA=+—RHIFE

HE—

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(i) Financial risk management policies (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued)

110

(i)

(i)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The Group manages its exposure to credit
risk by investing its cash assets safely and
profitably, and by the application of credit
approvals, credit limits and monitoring
procedures on an on-going basis.

Deposits with financial institutions

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk
by placing deposits with financial institutions
that meet the established credit rating or
other criteria. Given these high credit ratings,
management does not expect any counterparty
to fail to meet its obligations.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has
certain concentration of credit risk as 93%
(2014: 90%) of total cash and cash equivalents
were deposited at one financial institution
in Hong Kong with high credit ratings
(2014: 77% and 20% of total cash and cash
equivalents were deposited at two financial
institutions in Mainland China and one
financial institution in Hong Kong with high
credit ratings respectively).

(d) Liquidity and cash flow risks
Liquidity and cash flow risks arise mainly from
general funding and business activities. The Group
practises prudent risk management by maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding
through certain committed credit facilities.

29. €@ T H (%)
() ZEERESFEBE (&)
() EERKE)

i) EWEBSREMKE
(%)
AEMBBRERAEFH
WIRBHBSEE R
FEFAIEERM - 2
iTBE%E&E*A&F%EE%

=S,
E/\

(i) MNEMERBZEFR
REEE B KT R FE
BERAEENAN
H1ﬁ5‘§E'JE’] BHIERE
ﬁﬁ:ﬁ o EENZ

Fa%%%?é?%% =&
%ﬂ EEERBYF
FHEETTRE -

R-_ZET—HF+_-H8
=+—8B BRAE
E93% (=ZF—H4F :

0% ) HeRREE
EMRBEHFRRES—
M EETR e rE
(Z2—FE :77% &
20% 2R MRS EE
Y4858 75 Bl 15 hUA R B
AEMEREE—HE
FEEIRSRIKE)
WAEBEETEES
FER

(d) /}lb@ﬁ%&iﬁﬁumgﬂpﬁ
mEBEeMReRERRE
EELB—RESREAXE
B o AEEBRBERTER
S RBRBETREMEER
B WERZENRRE
H e
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(i)  Financial risk management policies (Continued)
(d) Liquidity and cash flow risks (Continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed by using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the end of reporting period) and the

AR e B R T 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_T-AFt+-A=+—RALFE

29. €@ T

Bog)

(i) Z=EEREIELE (&)

(d)

RBEESRATRERR
(%)

TRAJAEEETESR
BERBRESHEERKIEZES
MR R SR E (BN A
BN RN (BT ) BN
¥ B A R 2 BT A &
AEZHBNFORARARER
ANRZRTEHRADNT 284

earliest date the Group can be required to pay: TALEARE R -
More than ~ More than
Total Within 1 year 2 years
contractual 1 year but but
Carrying undiscounted oron less than less than ~ More than
amount  cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
#an -FRg -FHE WENUL
FHR AR BRE BRE
RaEfE BeRE XK [k If REHNE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TERL TERL TERL ThERL ThARL
At 31 December 2015 R-B-1%
t=j=t=¢
Trade and other payables ~ ERB 5 R
Eft 3R 13,100 13,100 12,107 - 993 -
Shareholder's loan REER 1,000 1,000 - - 1,000 -
Loan from a non-controlling k& —FHBAA
shareholder of a subsidiary ~ JFZRRAEE 2
£ 11,943 15,287 - - 15,287 -
Other bonds payable AR Es 64,765 92,848 4,365 9,660 11,610 67,213
Convertible bonds AR ES 14,728 15,122 15,122 - - -
Finance lease payables ENRERE 3,139 3,329 1,726 933 670 -
108,675 140,686 33,320 10,593 29,560 67,213
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—RALEE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

29. €I A

(i) Financial risk management policies (Continued) () ZTHEREEERE (&)
(d) Liquidity and cash flow risks (Continued) d) RBESRRESRERR
(&)
More than ~ More than
Total Within 1 year 2 years
contractual 1 year but but
Carrying  undiscounted oron less than less than ~ More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
Ban —EN5 —ENE MEN £
R RiR BRE BRE
REME BémE ZoKE M k3 RENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
At31December2014 ~ R=-Z-ME
tZR=+-H
Trade and other payables ~ EEH K
HEiiE 6,213 6,213 5,870 - 343 -
Loan from a non-controlling 7R 8 — &M B2 A
shareholder of a subsidiary  EIERRME 7
A 12,607 15,452 - - 15,452 -
Other bonds payable HtERES 49,260 73,322 2,970 2,970 8,910 58,472
Convertible bonds AR ES 13,783 15,572 450 15,122 - -
Finance lease payables ERpERE 4,253 4,646 1317 1,726 1,603 -
86,116 115,205 10,607 19,818 26,308 58,472
(i) Capital risk management (i) ETEfREE

112

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions. In view of this, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt as it sees fit and
appropriate.

Han Tang International Holdings Limited ZEEIERZRER AR
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(i) Capital risk management (Continued)

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as total borrowings divided by total capital.
Total borrowings comprise of (i) borrowings, (ii) finance
lease payables and (iii) liability component of convertible
bonds as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Total capital is calculated as equity, as shown in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

During 2015, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2014, was to maintain a gearing ratio of not more
than 100%. The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2015
and 2014 were as follows:

AR e B R T 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-ZT-—AF+-A=1+—BLEE

29. €I R#)

(if)

BB S (#)
HEFEN -2 AREREER
BHREEERHEESHAB o It
F R THAR IR AE TR AR B IR B AN R AT
B o ERARBBREOER - (hEN
BEMER(NTEREFZERE
By - BRBETREE S B
ARRZ B InFHERAE o

AZE—RF AEBCREBEC
T F AR E ) - B
BTBE100% 2 EEBBLLE -
RZE—RAFR-_ZT—WNF+=-A
—+t—HMEEAGBLENT :

2015 2014

—E-EF —ZT—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Total borrowings fE R 4a%R 95,575 79,903
Total equity s 4aE 236,838 414,773
Gearing ratio BEAMFBLE 40.4% 19.3%

Neither the Company nor any of the Group entities are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

ApRHAKEEMHIEESH
BETINEBIEINZ EARRIE ©

o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_ZT-RF+-_A=1+—HLHFE

30. CONNECTED/RELATED PARTY 30. ARt BAES RS
TRANSACTIONS
(a) The following is a summary of the transactions with (a) Tﬁ\ BREE RETR S ZHME
connected/related parties, which were carried out in the ZERHGNASE —MREKRER
normal course of operations of the Group: LT
2015 2014
—B-AHEF —E—mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Transactions between Rodez and RodezEEKL-Kepong/Pacific
KL-Kepong/Pacific Union UnionZ AR A2 5
— Interest expenses for borrowings —fBRZFERX - 2,528
Transactions between ICSC and BN ETEP R A
Zhongying
— Interest expense for borrowings — R ERAX 695 343
(b) Compensation of key management personnel: (b) FTEEEASFH -
The emoluments of directors and other members of key EENHEMWTEEEEXKERER
management during the years were as follows: EFEZME0WT :
2015 2014
—E-If —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Short-term employees benefits EHEEE RN 3,375 3,602
31. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 31. EXEBRERS
During the year, no major non-cash transaction. During the year RERN BEEAERERS - N=-Z
2014, a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary injected a — P04 - — R B A ) FE 1R A% IR B8 [A) AN
construction-in-progress of HK$108,840,000 to the Group as = E)F A TIZ 108,840,000 T 1E
capital contribution and the additions to property, plant and BEE - MUBREBERERE6,271,000
equipment of HK$6,271,000 were acquired by finance leases. BT ZE BHERRE -
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre iy

RER M T

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_T-AFt+-A=+—RALFE

32. A F BN K

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2015 2014
—E—RF —ET—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Equipment B 2,328 3,104
Interests in subsidiaries RB AR 2= 243,035 372,183
Total non-current assets kRBEEHE 245,363 375,287
Current assets RBEE
Prepayment and other receivables TEAT IR I H A E R IR 5,683 6,671
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEY 913 5,530
Total current assets RBEEHLE 6,596 12,201
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H A FE T SR8 4,994 4,555
Convertible bonds Al AR E S 14,728 -
Finance lease payables JENRERSE 557 531
Total current liabilities REBEERAE 20,279 5,086
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(ER) EERE (13,683) 7,115
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERGRBAR 231,680 382,402
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Convertible bonds AR ES - 13,783
Finance lease payables ENmERE 938 1,495
Shareholder’s loan R E K 1,000 =
Other bonds payable HEERES 64,765 49,260
Total non-current liabilities FRBEERARE 66,703 64,538
Net assets EEZFE 164,977 317,864
EQUITY B% &=
Share capital B2 1,581 1,581
Reserves s 163,396 316,283
Total equity % 2= 4B {E 164,977 317,864
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Five-Year Financial Summary
T FH R

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E—RHF —TWOF —ZT—=F ZT—=—F ZFT——%F
HKS$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT T T FATT

Revenue W25 28,844 50,467 = = -
(Loss)/profit before BRI (EE),/

taxation St (161,315) (32,840) (12,914) 8,412 (82,328)
Non-current assets ERFEE 292,179 443,048 486,289 157,059 212,374
Current assets REEE 53,334 57,841 300,620 87,687 27,943
Current liabilities mEBE (28,442) (6,983)  (250,381) (1,989) (15,858)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (80,233) (79,133)  (172,719) - -
Equity [ 236,838 414,773 363,809 242,757 224,459
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